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52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(1) 
 
Q. The specific reasons for each change. 

 
A. Please refer to Schedule A of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Test Year) 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(2) 
 
Q. The total number of customers served by the utility. 

 
A. Currently there are approximately 600,000 customers served by Duquesne. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(3) 
 
Q. A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will be 

affected by the change. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D-5 D and 

DFR IV-A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(4) 
 
Q. The effect of the change on the utility's customers. 

 
A. See Duquesne’s Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D-5 D and 

DFR IV-A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(5) 
 
Q. The direct or indirect effect of the proposed change on the utility's revenue and expenses. 

 
A. See Duquesne’s Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(6) 
 
Q. The effect of the change on the service rendered by the utility 

 
A. The Company is not proposing any changes to the service rendered by the utility. 
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52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(7) 
 
Q. A list of factors considered by the utility in its determination to make the change. The list 

shall include a comprehensive statement about why these factors were chosen and the 
relative importance of each. This subsection does not apply to a portion of a change 
seeking a general rate increase as defined in 66 Pa. C. S. & 1308 (relating to voluntary 
changes in rates). 

 
A. Not applicable. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(8) 
 
Q. Studies undertaken by the utility in order to draft its proposed change. This paragraph 

does not apply to a portion of a tariff change seeking a general rate increase as defined in 
66 Pa. C. S. & 1308. 

 
A. Not applicable. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(9) 
 
Q. Customer polls taken and other documents which indicate customer acceptance and 

desire for the proposed change. If the poll or other documents reveal discernible public 
opposition, an explanation of why the change is in the public interest shall be provided. 

 
A. Please refer to DLC Exhibit 5, Statement No. 9, Direct Testimony of Jennifer Neiswonger. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(10) 
 
Q. Plans the utility has for introducing or implementing the changes with respect to its 

ratepayers. 
 
A. The Company proposes to publish in newspapers in general circulation in its service 

territory the notice of the rate filing. Additional publications may be made based on 
Commission order. Bill inserts describing changes proposed and ultimately approved will 
be provided to customers. Additionally, news releases, and other media outlets will be 
utilized to communicate with customers. Additionally, after the Commission acts on this 
filing, the Company will notify all customers in accordance with Commission 
requirements. The Company also plans to inform customers about approved rate changes 
in customer newsletters. 
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52 Pa. Code § 53.52(a)(11) 
 
Q. FCC. FERC or Commission orders or rulings applicable to the filing. 

 
A. None. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)(1) 
 
Q. The specific reasons for each Increase or decrease. 

 
A. See Duquesne’s Statement of Reasons in DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test 

Year), Schedule A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)2 
 
Q. The operating income statement of the utility for a 12-month period, the end of which 

may not be more than 120 days prior to the filing. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year), Schedule B. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)3 
 
Q. A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will be 

increased. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D-5 D and 

DFR IV-A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)4 
 
Q. A calculation of the total increases, in dollars, by tariff subdivision, projected to an 

annual basis. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D and DFR 

IV-A. 



Exhibit 1, Schedule A 
Page 4 of 5 

Docket No. R-2021-3024750 

 

 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)5 
 
Q. A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will be 

decreased. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D-5 D and 

DFR IV-A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(b)6 
 
Q. A calculation of the total decreases, in dollars, by tariff subdivision, projected to an 

annual basis. 
 
A. See Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Schedule D-5 D and 

DFR IV-A. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c)1 
 
Q. A statement showing the utility's calculation of the rate of return earned in the 12-month 

period referred to on subsection (b)(2), and the anticipated rate of return to be earned 
when the tariff, revision, or supplemental becomes effective. The rate base used in this 
calculation shall be supported by summaries of original cost for the rate of return 
calculation. 

 
A. See Schedule C-1 of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), DLC Exhibit 3 

(Future Test Year) and DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c)2 
 
Q. A detailed balance sheet of the utility as of the close of the period referred to in 

subsection (b)(2). 
 
A. See Schedule B-1 of Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), DLC 

Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c)3 
 
Q. A summary, by detailed plant accounts, of the book value of the property of the utility at 

the date of the balance sheet required by paragraph (2). 
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A. See Schedule C-2 of Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), DLC 
Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year) – DFR V-A-3. 

 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c)4 
 
Q.  A statement showing the amount of the depreciation reserve, at the date of the balance 

sheet required by paragraph (2), applicable to the property, summarized as required by 
paragraph (3). 

 
A. See Schedule C-2 of Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), DLC 

Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year) – DFR V-A-3. 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c) 5 
 
Q. A statement of operating income, setting forth the operating revenues and expenses by 

detailed accounts for the 12-month period ending on the balance sheet required by 
paragraph (2). 

 
A. See Schedule B of Duquesne’s DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), DLC 

Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
 
 

52 Pa. Code § 53.52(c) 6 
 
Q. A brief description of a major change in the operating or financial condition of the utility 

occurring between the date of the balance sheet required by paragraph (2) and the date of 
transmittal of the tariff, revision or supplement. As used in this paragraph, a major 
change is one which materially alters the operating or financial condition of the utility 
from that reflected in paragraphs (1) - (5). 

 
A. There have been no major changes in the operating and financial conditions of Duquesne 

between the date of the balance sheet and the date of this filing. 
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Q.1. Provide a summary discussion of the rate change request, including specific reasons for 

each increase or decrease.  Also provide a breakdown, which identifies the revenue 

requirement value of the major items generating the requested rate change. 

A.1. See Schedule A of DLC Exhibit 1, Part 1. 
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Q.2. Identify the proposed witnesses for all statements and schedules of revenues, expenses, 

taxes, property, valuation and the like. 
 

A.2. Please refer to DLC Exhibit 5, Statement 1 – Direct Testimony of C. James Davis 
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Q.3. Provide a single page summary table showing, at present and at proposed 

rates, together with references to the filing information, the following as 
claimed for the fully adjusted test year: 

 
Revenues 
Operating Expenses 
Operating Income 

Rate Base 
Rate of Return (produced) 

 
A.3. Attachment I-A-3 provides the requested information. 
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Total PA Jurisdiction 
Year Ending December 31, 2022 

(Thousands of Dollars) 

 
  AT PRESENT RATES  AT PROPOSED RATES 

         
   

Amount 
 DLC Exhibit 2 

(Fully Projected Future) 

Reference 

  
Amount 

 DLC Exhibit 2 
(Fully Projected Future) 

Reference 
         

Revenue   $   568,382  Sch. D-1, Col. (1), line 5   $     654,141  Sch. D-1, Col. (3), line 5 
         
Operating Expenses        427,697  Sch. D-1, Col. (1), line 9          433,931  Sch. D-1, Col. (3), line 9 
         

Operating Income   $    140,685  Sch. D-1, Col. (1), line 10   $     220,210  Sch. D-1, Col. (3), line 10 
         
Rate Base  $ 2,276,464  Sch. C-1, Col. (2), line 1  $ 2,276,464  Sch. C-1, Col. (2), line 1 
         

Rate of Return           5.356%  Sch. C-1, Col. (2), line 3            7.840%  Sch. C-1, Col. (2), line 5 
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Q.4. Whenever a major generating plant is placed in operating service or removed from 
operating service the utility shall separately indicate the effect of the plant addition or 
removal from service upon rate base, revenue, expense, tax, income and revenue 
requirement as it affects the test year.  

A.4. This filing requirement is not applicable to Duquesne Light Company’s current rate 
filing. 
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Q.1. Provide a corporate history including the dates of original incorporation, subsequent mergers and 

acquisitions. Indicate all counties, cities and other governmental subdivisions to which service is 

provided, including service areas outside this Commonwealth, and the total number of customers 

or billed units in the areas served.     

 

A.1.     

Duquesne Light Company 

Incorporation History and Conversion to a Limited Liability Company 

 

The present Duquesne Light Company was formed on November 15, 1912 by the consolidation and 

merger of Duquesne Light Company, Oakmont and Verona Light, Heat and Power Company and 

Monongahela Light Company under Section 1 of the Act of May 3, 1909, P.L. 408.  By the terms of this 

Act all of the rights, powers, franchises and property of the constituent companies became vested in the 

present Duquesne Light Company. Comm. vs. Citizens Light, Heat and Power Company of Penna., 41 

C.C. 222. 

 

Of the constituent companies, Duquesne Light Company was incorporated on August 5, 1903 under the 

Act of April 29, 1874, P.L. 73, and its supplement, the Act of May 8, 1889, P.L. 136, for the purpose of 

supplying light, heat and power by means of electricity to the City of Pittsburgh (Allegheny County), and 

by the terms of its charter was to have perpetual existence. 

 

Oakmont and Verona Light, Heat and Power Company was incorporated on June 18, 1890, under the Act 

of April 29, 1874, and its supplement, the Act of May 8, 1889, for the purpose of supplying light, heat 

and power by means of electricity to the Borough of Oakmont (Allegheny County), and by the terms of 

its charter was to have existence for 999 years. 

 

Monongahela Light Company was incorporated on April 4, 1902, under the Act of April 29, 1874, and its 

supplement, the Act of May 8, 1889, for the purpose of supplying light, heat and power by means of 

electricity within the districts lying east and west of the Monongahela and Youghiogheny Rivers in the 

County of Allegheny, Pennsylvania between a point on the said Monongahela River where the boundary 

line of the City of Pittsburgh intersects said river to a point where the boundary line of the County of 

Westmoreland intersects said river, and from the mouth of the Youghiogheny River to a point where the 

boundary line of said County of Westmoreland intersects the said Youghiogheny River, and more 

particularly bounded and described as follows, on the east by the Townships of Rostraver, Sewickley, 

North Huntingdon, Penn, Franklin and Burrell in the County of Westmoreland, on the north by the 

Allegheny River, on the west by the City of Pittsburgh and the Townships of Snowden and Baldwin in 

Allegheny County, and on the south by the Townships of Union and Carroll, in Washington County,  

Pennsylvania, and by the terms of its charter was to have perpetual existence. 
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Duquesne Light Company restated its Articles of Amendment last on June 30, 1999.  The stated purposes 

for which the Company is incorporated under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania are to engage in, and do any lawful act concerning, any of all lawful business for which 

corporations may be incorporated under said Business Corporation Law, including but not limited to: 

 

A. The supply of light, heat and power to the public by any means; 

 

B.  The production, generation, manufacture, transmission, transportation, storage, distribution or 

furnishing of electricity, natural or artificial gas, steam or air conditioning, or any combination 

thereof to or for the public; and 

 

C. Manufacturing, processing, owning, using and dealing in personal property of every class and 

description, engaging in research and development, the furnishing of services, and acquiring, 

owning, using and disposing of real property of every nature whatsoever. 

 

In April 2017, Duquesne Light Company submitted an “Application of Duquesne Light Company for 

Approval to Convert from a Business Corporation to a Limited Liability Company”, (Docket No. A-

2017-2599375) to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PUC).  The PUC approved this 

application in an Order dated August 31, 2017 and effective November 2017, Duquesne Light Company 

completed its conversion to a Limited Liability Company. 

 

Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. is the sole holder of Duquesne Light Company common stock (10 shares 

@$1 par value). Duquesne Light's subsidiaries are: 

 

Duquesne Light Company and its Subsidiaries 

Entity Type:      Corporation 

Registrations 

Pennsylvania   Incorporation    11/25/1912 

 

Duquesne Power Two, LLC*   100% 

Entity Type:     Limited Liability Company 

Registrations 

Delaware   Incorporation  10/21/2003 

Pennsylvania   Qualification   05/17/2004 

 

Monongahela Light and Power Company (through October 2017)** 100% 

Entity Type:     Corporation 

Registrations 

Pennsylvania   Incorporation   04/28/1899 

 

*Formerly Duquesne Power, Inc., a Delaware corporation, converted 12/08/2005. 

**Pursuant to the PUC Order approving its Application of Duquesne Light Company for Approval to 

Convert from a Business Corporation to a Limited Liability Company, (Docket No. A-2017-2599375) in 
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November 2017, Duquesne Light Company transferred Monongahela Light and Power Company and its 

subsidiary, DataCom Information Systems, LLC to Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. (parent).   

 

The counties, cities and other government subdivisions, for which service is provided, please see the 

below.  Total number of customer accounts is approximately 595,000. 

 

LIST OF COMMUNITIES SERVED 

The Company renders service in portions of Allegheny and Beaver Counties, Pennsylvania.  Electric 

service is available in all localities where the Company has distribution facilities, including all or a 

portion of the following cities, boroughs and townships. 

ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

Cities and Boroughs 

 

Aspinwall   Dormont   Jefferson   Rosslyn Farms 

Avalon    Dravosburg   Leetsdale   Sewickley 

Baldwin   Duquesne   Liberty    Sewickley Heights 

Bell Acres   East McKeesport  Lincoln   Sewickley Hills 

Bellevue   East Pittsburgh   McKeesport   Sharpsburg 

Ben Avon   Edgewood   McKees Rocks   Swissvale 

Ben Avon Heights Edgeworth   Millvale   Thornburg 

Bethel Park   Emsworth   Monroeville   Trafford 

Blawnox   Etna    Mt. Oliver   Turtle Creek 

Braddock  Forest Hills   Munhall   Verona 

Braddock Hills   Fox Chapel   North Braddock  Versailles 

Brentwood   Franklin Park   Oakmont   Wall 

Carnegie   Glassport   Osborne   West Homestead 

Castle Shannon  Glenfield   Pennsbury Village  West Mifflin 

Chalfant   Green Tree   Pittsburgh   West View 

Churchill   Haysville   Pleasant Hills   Whitaker 

Clairton  Heidleberg   Plum    Whitehall 

Coraopolis   Homestead   Port Vue   White Oak 

Crafton   Ingram    Rankin    Wilkinsburg 

Wilmerding 

Townships 

 

Aleppo    Kilbuck   Ohio    Shaler 

Baldwin   Leet    Penn Hills   Stowe 

Collier    McCandless   Pine    Upper St. Clair 

Crescent   Moon    Reserve   West Deer 

Findlay   Mt. Lebanon   Richland   Wilkins 

Hampton   Neville    Robinson 

Indiana   North Versailles  Ross 

Kennedy   O'Hara    Scott 
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LIST OF COMMUNITIES SERVED - (Continued) 

 

BEAVER COUNTY 

 

Cities and Boroughs 

 

Aliquippa   East Rochester   Glasgow   Patterson Heights 

Ambridge   Eastvale   Hookstown   Rochester 

Baden    Economy   Industry   Shippingport 

Beaver    Fallston   Midland   South Heights 

Beaver Falls   Frankfort Springs  Monaca   West Mayfield 

Bridgewater   Freedom   New Brighton 

Conway   Georgetown   Ohioville 

 

Townships 

Brighton   Hanover   New Sewickley  Raccoon 

Center    Harmony   Patterson   Rochester 

Daugherty   Hopewell   Potter    Vanport 

Greene    Independence   Pulaski    White 
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Q.2. Provide a description of the property of the utility and an explanation of the system’s 

operation, and supply the following, using available projections if actual data is 

unavailable:    

a.  A schedule of generating capability showing for the test year, and for the two 

consecutive 12-month periods prior to the test year, net dependable capacity in 

KW by unit, plant capacity factor by unit, and total fuel consumption by type and 

cost for each unit, if available, or for each station, and operation and maintenance 

expenses by station.  

b.  A schedule showing for the test year and for the 12-month period immediately 

prior to the test year the scheduled and unscheduled outages—in excess of 48 

hours—for each station, the equipment or unit involved, the date the outage 

occurred, duration of the outage, maintenance expenses incurred for each outage, 

if available, and amounts reimbursable from suppliers or insurance companies.  

c.  A schedule for each unit retired during the test year or subsequent to the end of 

the test year, which shows the unit’s KW capacity, hours of operation during the 

test year, net output generated, cents/KWH of maintenance and fuel expenses, and 

date of retirement.  

d.  A schedule showing latest projections of capacity additions and retirements—

costs and KW—and reserve capacity at the time of peak for at least 10 years 

beyond the test year, including the in-service dates—actual or expected—and 

AFDC cutoff dates—if different from in-service dates—for all new generating 

units coming on line during or subsequent to the test year, if claimed. 

A.2. This filing requirement is not applicable to Duquesne Light Company’s current rate 

filing. 
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Q.3. Provide an overall system map, including and labeling all generating plants, transmission 

substations—indicate voltage, transmission system lines—indicate voltage, and all 
interconnection points with other electric utilities, power pools, and other like systems. 

 
A. Attachment DFR I-B-3 is considered Highly Confidential since it contains Critical 

Energy Infrastructure Information and is being provided to the Commission and will be 
provided to parties upon the execution of a Stipulated Protective Agreement and/or 

Protective Order. 
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Q.1.  Provide a schedule showing the test year rate base and rates of return at original 

cost less accrued depreciation under present rates and under proposed rates. 
Claims made on this schedule should be cross-referenced to appropriate 
supporting schedules. 

 

 
A.1.  Schedules C-1 and D-1 of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year) 

provide the requested information. 
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Q.2. If the schedule provided in response to item 1, is based upon a future test year, provide a 

similar schedule which is based upon actual data for the 12-month period immediately 

prior to the test year. 

A.2. Please refer to Schedules C-1 and D-1 for DLC Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and DLC 

Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
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Q.3. When a utility files a tariff stating a new rate based in whole or in part on the cost of 

construction, as defined in 66 Pa.C.S. §  1308(f) (relating to voluntary changes in rates), 

of an electric generating unit, the utility shall identify:  

a) The total cost of the generating unit.  

b) The following costs:  

1) The cost and quantity of each category of major equipment, such as 

switchgear, pumps or diesel generators and the like.  

2) The cost and quantity of each category of bulk materials, such as concrete, 

cable and structural steel and the like.  

3) Manual labor.  

4) Direct and indirect costs of architect/engineering services.  

5) Direct and indirect costs of subcontracts or other contracts involving major 

components or systems such as turbines, generators, nuclear steam supply 

systems, major structures and the like.  

6) Distributed costs.  

c) A cost increase of $5 million or more, including AFUDC, over the original utility 

estimates provided under 66 Pa.C.S. §  515(a) (relating to construction cost of electric 

generating units) and its causes.  

d) Compliance with subsections (a) and (b) will be identical in format and substance as 

that provided under 52 Pa. Code §  57.103 (relating to estimate of construction costs) 

for original cost estimates submitted under 66 Pa.C.S. §  515(a).  

A.3. This filing requirement is not applicable to Duquesne Light Company’s current rate 

filing. 
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Q.1. If a claim is made for plant held for future use, supply the following:  

a. A description of the plant or land site and its cost and any accumulated 

depreciation.  

b. The expected date of use for each item claimed.  

c. An explanation as to why it is necessary to acquire each item in advance of its 

date of use.  

d. The data when each item was acquired.  

e. The date when each item was placed in plant held for future use.  

A.1. Duquesne Light Company is not making a claim in measures of value in the fully 

projected future test year for plant held for future use.  The Company is requesting 

authorization to record AFUDC on land acquired to provide future service in this 

proceeding.  Please refer to the testimony of Jaime A. Bachota in DLC Exhibit 5, 

Statement No. 2. 
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Q.2. If a claim is made for construction work in progress, provide a supporting schedule which 

sets forth separately, revenue-producing and nonrevenue producing amounts, and include, 

for each category a summary of all work orders, amounts expended at the end of the test 

year and anticipated in-service dates. Indicate if the construction work in progress will 

result in insurance recoveries, reimbursements, or retirements of existing facilities. 

Describe in exact detail the necessity of each project claimed if not detailed on the 

summary page from the work order. Include final completion dates and estimated total 

amounts to be spent on each project.  

A.2. Duquesne Light Company is not making a claim in the fully projected future test year for 

construction work in process.   



DFR II-B-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 

 
Q.3. If a claim is made for materials and supplies or fuel inventory provide a supporting 

schedule for each claim showing the latest actual 13 monthly balances and showing in the 

case of fuel inventory claims, the type of fuel, and location, as in station, and the quantity 

and price claimed.   

A.3. The requested information for materials and supplies is provided in Attachment II-B-3.  

The claim for materials and supplies is based upon the actual 13 monthly balances in the 

Historic Test Year.  There is no claim being made for fuel inventory.     



Attachment II-B-3
Page 1 of 9

Line 
No. Description Amount

1 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (B-3, page 2) 25,432$      

2 Stores expense undistributed (B-3, page 3) -              

3 Total materials and operating supplies 25,432$      

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Monthly Average of Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2022
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Month Amount

1 December 2021 25,811$        

2 January 2022 25,747          

3 February 25,686          

4 March 25,622          

5 April 25,559          

6 May 25,495          

7 June 25,432          

8 July 25,369          

9 August 25,305          

10 September 25,242          

11 October 25,178          

12 November 25,115          

13 December 25,050          

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 330,611$      

15 Monthly Average 25,432$        

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2022
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Month Amount

1 December 2021 -$                  

2 January 2022 -                    

3 February -                    

4 March -                    

5 April -                    

6 May -                    

7 June -                    

8 July -                    

9 August -                    

10 September -                    

11 October -                    

12 November -                    

13 December -                    

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies -$                  

15 Monthly Average -$                  

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Stores Expenses Undistributed

As of December 31, 2022
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Description Amount

1 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (B-3, page 5) 28,010$      

2 Stores expense undistributed (B-3, page 6) 0                 

3 Total materials and operating supplies 28,010$      

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Monthly Average of Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2021
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Month Amount

1 December 2020 34,246$        

2 January 2021 33,451          

3 February 33,242          

4 March 26,827          

5 April 26,714          

6 May 26,601          

7 June 26,488          

8 July 26,375          

9 August 26,262          

10 September 26,149          

11 October 26,037          

12 November 25,924          

13 December 25,811          

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 364,129$      

15 Monthly Average 28,010$        

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2021
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Month Amount

1 December 2020 -$                  

2 January 2021 2                   

3 February -                    

4 March -                    

5 April -                    

6 May -                    

7 June -                    

8 July -                    

9 August -                    

10 September -                    

11 October -                    

12 November -                    

13 December -                    

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 2$                 

15 Monthly Average 0$                 

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Stores Expenses Undistributed

As of December 31, 2021
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Description Amount

1 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (B-3, page 8) 33,415$      

2 Stores expense undistributed (B-3, page 9) 0                 

3 Total materials and operating supplies 33,415$      

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Monthly Average of Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2020
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line Amount
No. Month

1 December 2019 31,879$           

2 January 2020 31,882             

3 February 31,648             

4 March 32,053             

5 April 32,921             

6 May 33,309             

7 June 33,498             

8 July 34,222             

9 August 34,488             

10 September 34,419             

11 October 34,586             

12 November 35,238             

13 December 34,246             

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 434,390$         

15 Monthly Average 33,415$           

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

As of December 31, 2020
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Month Amount

1 December 2019 0                   

2 January 2020 0                   

3 February 4                   

4 March -                

5 April -                

6 May 2                   

7 June -                

8 July -                

9 August -                

10 September -                

11 October -                

12 November -                

13 December -                

14 Total Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 6$                 

15 Monthly Average 0$                 

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Stores Expenses Undistributed

As of December 31, 2020
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Sponsor: James Milligan 
 

 
 
Q.4.  If a claim is made for cash working capital provide a supporting schedule setting forth the 

method and all detailed data utilized to determine the cash working capital requirement. 

If not provided in the support data, provide a lead-lag study of working capital, 
completed no more than 6 months prior to the rate increase filing. 

 
A.4. Schedule C-4 of Exhibits 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), 3 (Future Test Year) and 

4 (Historic Test Year) and the testimony of Robert O’Brien in DLC Statement Number 
10 sets forth the method and detailed data utilized to determine the Company's claimed 
cash working capital requirements.  

 



DFR II-B-5 
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Sponsor: James Milligan 

 

 

Q.5. If a claim is made for compensating bank balances, provide the following 
information:         

a. Name and address of each bank 

b. Types of accounts with each bank - checking, savings, escrow, other 
services, and the like.  

c. Average daily balance in each account. 
d. Amount and percentage requirements for compensating bank balance at 

each bank. 
e. Average daily compensating bank balance at each bank. 
f. Documents from each bank explaining compensating bank balance 

requirements. 

g. Interest earned on each type of account.  
h. A calculation showing the average daily float for each bank.  

      
 

A.5.  There are no claims for compensating bank balances. 
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota 

 

 

 
Q.6. Explain in detail by statement or exhibit the appropriateness of additional claims 

or the use of a method not previously mentioned, in the claimed rate base. 

 
 
A.6.  An explanation of Duquesne Light Company’s claim for any additional rate base 

items is set forth in Section C of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test 

Year).  
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Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 

 
 
 
Q.1. Prepare a Statement of Income including:  

       
a. The book, or budgeted, statement for the test year.  
 
b. Adjustments to annualize and normalize under present rates, including an 

elimination of the effects on income of the energy cost rate and state tax 
adjustment surcharge.  

 
c. The income statement under present rates after adjustment.  

 
d. The adjustment for the revenue requested.  
 
e. The income statement under requested rates after adjustment.  

 
Each adjustment, including those relating to adjustment clauses, shall contain an 
explanation in sufficient clarifying detail to allow a reasonably informed person to 
understand the method and rationale of the adjustment.  

 
 
A.1.  The information requested in items a. through e. is set forth in Section D of DLC 

Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year). 
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Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 

 
 
Q.2  If the schedule provided in item 1 is based upon budgeted data for a future test 

year, provide a similar schedule which is based upon actual data for the 12-month 

period immediately prior to the test year. 
 
 
A.2.  Please refer to Section D of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year) and 

DLC Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
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Sponsor:  Jaime Bachota 
 
 
Q.1. Provide a schedule showing all revenues and expenses for the test year and for the 

12-month period immediately prior to the test year, together with an explanation 
for major variances between test year revenues and expenses and those for the 
previous 12-month period.  Revenues and expenses shall be summarized by the 
major account categories listed below.  If budgeted data for a future test year is 
not readily available by these categories, an analysis of the data for the 12-month 
period immediately prior to the future test year or for the most recent available 
calendar year may serve as the basis for ratably allocating the budgeted data into 
the account categories. 

 
A.1.  See Attachment II-D-1. 
 



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 1 of 10

OPERATING REVENUES 2021 2020 Difference
400

Electric Revenue:
Residential 579,916$                     592,017$                     (12,101)$              
Commercial 256,580                       238,479                       18,101                 
Industrial 44,467                         47,459                         (2,992)                  
Public Street & Highway Lighting 11,671                         11,613                         58                        
Sales for Resale 1,560                           1,575                           (15)                       

Total Sales Revenue 894,193$                     891,143$                     3,050$                 
Provision for Rate Refunds 22,784                         22,678                         106                      

Total Sales Revenue - Net 871,409$                     868,465$                     2,944$                 

Other Electric Revenue:
Forfeited Discounts 3,750$                         1,051$                         2,699$                 
Miscellaneous Service Revenue 1,816                           909                              907                      
Rent from Electric Property 11,968                         11,416                         552                      
Other Electric Revenue 86,727                         78,506                         8,221                   

Total Other Electric Revenue 104,262$                     91,882$                       12,380$               

Total Operating Revenue 975,671$                     960,347$                     15,324$               

OPERATING EXPENSE
401 - 402

Operation and Maintenance Expense
Power Production Expenses 206,041$                     204,370$                     1,671$                 
Transmission Expenses 12,546                         11,738                         808                      
Regional Market Expenses -                               -                               -                       
Distribution Expenses 56,294                         56,186                         108                      
Customer Accounts Expense 20,976                         24,994                         (4,018)                  
Customer Service & Informational Expenses 22,202                         29,610                         (7,408)                  
Administrative and General Expenses 134,259                       124,521                       9,738                   

Total Operation & Maint. Expense 452,318$                     451,419$                     899$                    

403 - 405
Depreciation Expense and Amortization 205,855$                     185,201$                     20,654$               
  of Electric Plant

407 Regulatory Debits (Credits), net -$                             -$                             -$                     

408 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 61,851$                       59,083$                       2,768$                 

Total Operating Expenses prior to Federal and State 720,024$                     695,703$                     24,321$               
   Income Taxes

Operating Income Prior to Fed & State Income Taxes 255,647$                     264,644$                     (8,997)$                



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 2 of 10

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES 2021 2020 Difference
409.1 Federal Income Taxes 34,523$                    28,064$                    6,459$              

State Income Taxes 12,537                      10,197                      2,340                

409.08 & 409.09
Deferred Federal Income Taxes - Net -                           -                           -                    
Deferred State Income Taxes - Net -                           -                           -                    

410.1 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes 108,324                    88,057                      20,267              
411.1 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes -Cr. (110,696)                   (89,986)                    (20,710)             
411.4 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment -                           -                           -                    

Total Federal & State Income Taxes 44,688$                    36,332$                    8,356$              

Operating Income After Federal & State Income 210,959$                  228,312$                  (17,353)$           
   Taxes

OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
Other Income 

417 Revenues from Non-Utility Operations -$                         415$                         (415)$                
418.1 Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies -                           -                           -                    
419 Interest & Dividend Income -                           138                           (138)                  

419.1 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 5,624                        5,793                        (169)                  
421.1 Gain on Disposition of Property -                           58                            (58)                    
421 Other Misc. Non-Operating Income -                           (250)                         250                   

Total Other Income 5,624$                      6,154$                      (530)
Other Income Deductions

421.2 Loss on Disposition of Property -$                         (61)$                         61$                   
426 Miscellaneous (3,832)                      (5,639)                      1,807                

Total Other Income Deductions (3,832)$                    (5,700)$                    1,868$              

Taxes Applicable to Other Income Deductions 
409.2 Federal Income Tax (101)$                       (71)$                         (30)$                  
409.2 State Income Tax (40)                           (28)                           (12)                    
410.2 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes 1,129                        788                           341                   
411.2 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr. (470)                         (328)                         (142)                  

   Total Taxes Applicable to Other Income Deduction 518$                         361$                         157$                 

   Income Before Interest Charges 212,233$                  228,405$                  (16,172)$           



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 3 of 10

INTEREST CHARGES 2021 2020 Difference
427 Interest on Long-term Debt 57,987                      55,795                      2,192                        
428 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense -                           446                           (446)                         

428.1 Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 2,399                        2,034                        365                           
430 Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 423                           1,379                        (956)                         
431 Other Interest Expense 893                           2,380                        (1,487)                      
432 Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction (1,689)                      (3,964)                      2,275                        

Net Interest Charges 60,012 58,070 1,942

Net Income 152,222$                  170,335$                  (18,113)$                  



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 4 of 10

Account 400

Accounts 401 - 402

Commercial Sales - $18,101 - The overall increase is primarily driven by increased throughput as social 
distancing guidelines begin to ease and the economy reopens post the COVID-19 pandemic and 
increased DSIC revenues.

Administrative and General Expenses - $9,738 - The overall increase is primarily driven by headcount 
additions, annual wage increases and an increase in training costs as social distancing guidelines begin 
to ease and the economy reopens post the COVID-19 pandemic.

Industrial Sales - ($2,993) - The overall decrease is primarily driven by forecasted demand reductions 
with the Company's larger industrial customers. These decreases are being partially offset by increased 
DSIC revenues.

Other Electric Revenue - $12,380 -  The overall increase is primarily driven by increased forfeited 
discounts associated with the Company's ability to collect late payment fees from our customers post 
COVID-19 pandemic as well as increased transmission revenues associated with the Company's FERC 
formula.  

For the 12 Months Ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2021

Power Production Expense - $1,671 - The overall increase in the power production expense is primarily 
driven by higher projected capacity prices. 

Customer Accounts Expense - ($4,018) - The overall decrease is driven by an assumed decrease in bad 
debt as social distancing guidelines begin to ease and the economy reopens post the COVID-19 
pandemic allowing customers to pay down delinquent balances.

Residential Sales - ($12,101)  - The overall decrease is primarily driven by lower throughput as 
residential customers begin working in the commercial office environment as social distancing guidelines 
begin to ease and the economy reopens post the COVID-19 pandemic. These decreases are being 
partially offset by increased DSIC revenues.

Customer Service & Informational Expenses - ($7,408) - The overall decrease is driven by normalization 
of electrical model costs which were deferred through Customer Service & Informational Expenses in the 
historic test year.



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 5 of 10

Account 403 - 405

Account 408

Account 409 - 411

Account 426

Account 427 - 432

Interest on Long-term Debt - $1,942 - The overall increase in interest on long term debt is primarily driven 
by a long-term debt issuance in the twelve months ended December 31, 2022 for which the proceeds are 
forecasted to be utilized for general corporate purposes. 

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes - $2,768 - The overall increase is primarily attributable to increases in 
sales revenue discussed above.

Total Federal & State Income Taxes - $8,356 - Income tax expense higher due to several factors 
including  lower net state property deductions and cost of removal, net of the excess deferred income tax 
(EDIT) flow back partially offset by lower operating income.

For the 12 Month Periods Ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2021

Miscellaneous - $1,807 - The overall decrease is primarily driven by increased donations in support of the 
community in the COVID-19 pandemic and increased costs associated with the Company's POLR 
program.

Depreciation Expense and Amortization of Electric Plant - $20,654 - The overall increase is primarily 
driven by capital additions in the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and a full year of depreciation 
for capital additions placed in service in the twelve months ended December 31, 2020.



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 6 of 10

OPERATING REVENUES 2022 2021 Difference
400

Electric Revenue:
Residential 581,661$              579,916$                 1,745$                
Commercial 269,889                256,580                   13,310                
Industrial 44,291                 44,467                     (176)                    
Public Street & Highway Lighting 11,810                 11,671                     139                     
Sales for Resale 1,560                   1,560                       -                      

Total Sales Revenue 909,210$              894,193$                 15,017$              
Provision for Rate Refunds 23,240                 22,784                     456                     

Total Sales Revenue - Net 885,971$              871,409$                 14,562$              

Other Electric Revenue:
Forfeited Discounts 3,916$                 3,750$                     166$                   
Miscellaneous Service Revenue 2,168                   1,816                       352                     
Rent from Electric Property 12,106                 11,968                     138                     
Other Electric Revenue 95,077                 86,727                     8,350                  

Total Other Electric Revenue 113,268$              104,262$                 9,006$                

Total Operating Revenue 999,239$              975,671$                 23,568$              

OPERATING EXPENSE
401 - 402

Operation and Maintenance Expense
Power Production Expenses 215,490$              206,041$                 9,449$                
Transmission Expenses 12,439                 12,546                     (107)                    
Regional Market Expenses -                       -                           -                      
Distribution Expenses 55,023                 56,294                     (1,270)                 
Customer Accounts Expense 21,277                 20,976                     301                     
Customer Service & Informational Expenses 30,509                 22,202                     8,307                  
Administrative and General Expenses 138,639                134,259                   4,380                  

Total Operation & Maint. Expense 473,378$              452,318$                 21,060$              

403 - 405
Depreciation Expense and Amortization 215,394$              205,855$                 9,539$                
  of Electric Plant

407 Regulatory Debits (Credits), net -$                     -$                         -$                    

408 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 64,589$                61,851$                   2,738$                

Total Operating Expenses prior to Federal and State 753,361$              720,024$                 33,337$              
   Income Taxes

Operating Income Prior to Fed & State Income Taxes 245,878$              255,647$                 (9,769)$               



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 7 of 10

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES 2022 2021 Difference
409.1 Federal Income Taxes 34,417$                    34,523$                    (106)$                 

State Income Taxes 12,498                      12,537                      (39)                     

409.08 & 409.09
Deferred Federal Income Taxes - Net -                            -                            -                     
Deferred State Income Taxes - Net -                            -                            -                     

410.1 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes 107,991                    108,324                    (333)                   
411.1 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes -Cr. (110,356)                   (110,696)                   340                    

411.4 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment -                            -                            -                     

Total Federal & State Income Taxes 44,550$                    44,688$                    (137)$                 

Operating Income After Federal & State Income 201,327$                  210,959$                  (9,632)$              
   Taxes

OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
Other Income 

417 Revenues from Non-Utility Operations -$                          -$                          -$                   
418.1 Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies -                            -                            -                     
419 Interest & Dividend Income -                            -                            -                     

419.1 Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 6,904                        5,624                        1,280                 
421.1 Gain on Disposition of Property -                            -                            -                     
421 Other Misc. Non-Operating Income -                            -                            -                     

Total Other Income 6,904$                      5,624$                      1,280
Other Income Deductions

421.2 Loss on Disposition of Property -$                          -$                          -$                   
426 Miscellaneous (3,919)                       (3,832)                       (86)                     

Total Other Income Deductions (3,919)$                     (3,832)$                     (86)$                   

Taxes Applicable to Other Income Deductions 
409.2 Federal Income Tax (169)$                        (101)$                        (67)$                   
409.2 State Income Tax (67)                            (40)                            (27)                     
410.2 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes 1,881                        1,129                        752                    
411.2 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr. (783)                          (470)                          (313)                   

   Total Taxes Applicable to Other Income Deduction 862$                         518$                         345$                  

   Income Before Interest Charges 203,450$                  212,233$                  (8,783)$              



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 8 of 10

INTEREST CHARGES 2022 2021 Difference
427 Interest on Long-term Debt 61,790                      57,987                      3,803                
428 Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense -                            -                            -                    
429 Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit 2,439                        2,399                        40                     
430 Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 1,128                        423                           705                   
431 Other Interest Expense 904                           893                           11                     
432 Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction (1,689)                       (1,689)                       -                    

Net Interest Charges 64,571 60,012 4,559

Net Income 138,879$                  152,222$                  (13,342)$           



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 9 of 10

Account 400

Accounts 401 - 402

Power Production Expense - $9,449 - The overall increase in the power production expense is primarily 
driven by higher projected capacity prices. 

Distribution Expenses ($1,270) - The overall decrease is primarily driven a reduction in the Company's 
electrical model costs which have been primarily recorded in the HTY and FTY and normalized through 
Customer Service & Informational Expenses. Annual wage increases are partially offsetting this 

 
Customer Service & Informational Expenses $8,307 - The overall increase is driven by normalization of 
electrical model costs which were deferred through Customer Service & Informational Expenses in the 
historic test year.

Administrative and General Expenses - $4,380 - The overall increase is primarily driven by annual wage 
increases, benefit cost inflation, incremental headcount to enhance the Company's cyber security 
program and additional costs in support of the Company's Electric Vehicle initiatives.

Other Electric Revenue - $8,350 - The overall increase is primarily driven by increases associated with 
the Company's FERC formula.

For the 12 Month Periods Ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022

Residential Sales - $1,745  - The overall increase is primarily driven by higher generation revenues as a 
result of higher capacity prices and increased DSIC revenues partially offset by lower throughput.

Commercial Sales - $13,310 - The overall increase is primarily driven by higher generation revenues as a 
result of higher capacity prices, increased DSIC revenues and slight throughput increases as the 
economy rebounds from COVID-19.



Duquesne Light Company
Operating Statements

For the 12 months ended Dec 31
(Thousands of Dollars)

Attachment II - D-1a
Page 10 of 10

Account 403 - 405

Account 408

Account 418 - 421

Account 427 - 432

Depreciation Expense and Amortization of Electric Plant - $9,539 - The overall increase is primarily due 
to capital additions in the twelve months ended December 31, 2022 and a full year of depreciation for 
capital additions placed in service in the twelve months ended December 31, 2021.

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes - $2,738 - The overall increase is primarily attributable to increases in 
sales revenue discussed above.

Interest on Long-Term Debt - $4,559 - The overall increase in interest on long term debt is primarily 
driven by a long-term debt issuance in the twelve months ended December 31, 2022 for which the 
proceeds are forecasted to be utilized for general corporate purposes. 

For the 12 Months Ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022

Other Income - $1,280 - The overall increase in Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction is 
primarily due to increased CWIP balances.



DFR II-D-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
 
Q.2  Provide a summary of test year adjustments which sets forth the effect of the 

adjustment upon the following: operating revenues, operating expenses, taxes 
other than income taxes, operating income before income taxes, State income tax, 
Federal income tax and income available for return.  In addition, test year 
adjustments shall be presented on the basis of the major account categories set out 
at II-D-1. 

 
 
A.2.  Schedule D-3 of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year) provides a 

summary of test year adjustments claimed by Duquesne by major account 
categories. 

 



 
DFR II-D-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
Q.3. List and explain all nonrecurring or extraordinary expenses incurred in the test 

year and all expenses included in the test year which do not occur yearly but are 
of a nature that they do occur over an extended period of years, for example, non-
yearly maintenance programs, and the like. 

 
A.3. Test year expenses that are non-recurring, extraordinary or do not occur yearly, 

but over an extended period of years, are explained and adjusted in Section D of 
DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



DFR II-D-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime Bachota 
 
 
 
Q.4.  As a separate item, list extraordinary property losses related to property 

previously included in cost of service when the gain or loss on this property has 
occurred or is likely to occur in the future test year. The proposed ratemaking 
treatment of extraordinary gains and losses must also be disclosed. Sufficient 
supporting data must be provided. 

 
A.4.  In the fully projected future test year and the future test year, Duquesne Light 

Company does not anticipate incurring any extraordinary gains or losses related to 
property previously included in cost of service. 

 



DFR II-D-5 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
 
Q.5.  Provide the amount of accumulated reserve for uncollectible accounts, method 

and rate of accrual, amounts accrued and amounts written off in each of the last 3 
calendar years.  

 
A.5.  The provision for uncollectible accounts for any year is determined by reviewing 

the current reserve balance, the current receivable status, the projected annual 
revenue, the trends of receivables and write-offs, and the projected impact of 
collection initiatives on the quality of receivables. 

 
Delinquent accounts receivable balances are separated into different categories. 
Each category of delinquent receivables is assigned a low and high reserve 
percentage.  Considering the historical trends and future expectations, the 
accumulated reserve for uncollectible accounts is adjusted monthly to a balance 
that falls within the low and high reserve range. 
 
Beginning with new distribution rates in April 2011, Duquesne Light Company 
began to recover customer assistance program expenses through a separate 
surcharge (Universal Service Surcharge).  As such, the Company has bifurcated 
the reserve into customer and customer assistance program allowances within 
Attachment II-D-5 as amounts associated with these programs are not recovered 
through base distribution rates. 

 
Attachment II-D-5 presents the accumulated provision for uncollectible amounts 
and the amounts written off for the years ended December 31, 2018, December 
31, 2019 and December 31, 2020. 
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Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
Q.6.  Supply detailed calculations to support the total claim for rate case expense, 

including supporting data for outside service rendered. Provide the items 
comprising the estimated rate case expense claim for the current rate case. 

 
A.6. The requested information is set forth in Schedule D-8 of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully 

Projected Future Test Year). 
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Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 

 
 

Q.7. Submit schedules for the test year and for the 12-month period immediately prior 
to the test year showing by major components, if included in claimed test year 
expenses, the expenses incurred in each of the following expense categories.  

 
a. Miscellaneous general expenses, including account 930 
b. Outside service expenses. 
c. Regulatory commission expenses. 
d. Advertising expenses, including advertising engaged in by trade 

associations whenever the utility has claimed a contribution to the 
trade association as a ratemaking claim – provide explanation of types 
and purposes of such advertising. 

e. Research and development expenses – provide a listing of major 
projects. 

f. Charitable and civic contributions, by recipient and amount. 
Explain major variances between the test year expenses and those 
expenses for the prior 12-month period. 

 
A.7. See the following attachments for the requested data and an explanation of the 

major variances: 
 

a. Attachment II-D-7a – Miscellaneous general expenses including 
account 930 

b. Attachment II-D-7b Outside service expenses 
c. Attachment II-D-7c Regulatory commission expenses 
d. Attachment II-D-7d Advertising expenses 
e. Attachment II-D-7e Research and development expenses 
f. Attachment II-D-7f Charitable and civic contributions  
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Line 
No. Expense 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 Increase (Decrease)

1 Utilities (electricity, gas, water, etc) 996 1,532 (536)                          

2 Membership Dues 805 1,239 (434)                          

3 Other miscellaneous 5,415 8,329 (2,914)                       

4 Total 7,216$                      11,100$                    (3,884)$                     

Note:

Line 
No. Expense 1/1/2022- 12/31/2022 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 Increase (Decrease)

1 Utilities (electricity, gas, water, etc) 1,082 996 86                             

2 Membership Dues 875 805 69                             

3 Other miscellaneous 5,881 5,415 466                           

4 Total 7,837$                      7,216$                      621$                         

Note:

Duquesne Light Company
Miscellaneous General Expenses - Account 930.2

For the Period
(Thousands of Dollars)

As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC 
account which was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.

Other Miscellaneous -  Increased costs relate to the functional and technical upgrade associated with the Company's customer 
care and billing system.

As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC 
account which was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.

Other Miscellaneous - Decreased costs are attributable to allocation of outside services between FERC account 930.2 and 923.  
See Attachment II-D7b for further discussion.
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Line 
No. Description/Purpose

1/1/2021 - 
12/31/2021 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 Increase (Decrease)

1 Office of the CEO 108$                         101$                         7$                             

2 General Counsel, Rates and Regulatory Affairs 2,140                        2,007                        132                           

3 Office of the CFO 3,529 3,311 218                           

4 Information Technology 6,019 5,647 372                           

5 Customer Service 4,120 3,866 255                           

6 Human Resources 755 708 47                             

7 Operations 15,548 14,586 962                           

8 Total 32,219$                    30,226$                    1,993$                      

Note:

Line 
No. Description/Purpose 1/1/2022- 12/31/2022 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 Increase (Decrease)
1 Office of the CEO 102$                         108$                         (6)$                            

2 General Counsel, Rates and Regulatory Affairs 2,017                        2,140                        (123)                          

3 Office of the CFO 3,326                        3,529                        (203)                          

4 Information Technology 5,673                        6,019                        (346)                          

5 Customer Service 3,884                        4,120                        (237)                          

6 Human Resources 712                           755                           (43)                            

7 Operations 14,655                      15,548                      (893)                          

8 Total 30,369$                    32,219$                    (1,850)$                     

Note:
As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC account which 
was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.

Duquesne Light Company
Outside Service Expenses

For the Period
(Thousands of Dollars)

As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC account which 
was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.
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Line 
No. Description/Purpose

1/1/2021 - 
12/31/2021 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 Increase (Decrease)

1 Distribution Rate Case 782                           698                           84                             

2 Total 782$                         698$                         84$                           

Line 
No. Description/Purpose 1/1/2022- 12/31/2022 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 Increase (Decrease)
1 Distribution Rate Case 785                           782                           3                               

2 Total 785$                         782$                         3$                             

Duquesne Light Company
Regulatory Commission Expenses 

For the Period
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Line 
No. Description/Purpose

1/1/2021 - 
12/31/2021 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 Increase (Decrease)

1 Community Information advertising 1,538$                       (1,538)$                     

2 Total -$                          1,538$                       (1,538)$                     

Note:

This schedule reflects only the costs of outside advertising expenses.

Line 
No. Description/Purpose 1/1/2022- 12/31/2022 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 Increase (Decrease)
1 Community Information advertising -$                          -$                          -$                          

2 Total -$                          -$                          -$                          

Note:

This schedule reflects only the costs of outside advertising expenses.

As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC 
account which was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.

Duquesne Light Company
Advertising Expenses

For the Period
(Thousands of Dollars)

As the budget is not prepared by FERC account, the above information was determined based on an allocation to FERC 
account which was based on the same relationship to the total as the actual costs shown for the Historic Test Year.



Attachment II-D-7e
Page 1 of 1

Duquesne Light Company
Research and Development Expenses

Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and 2022

Duquesne Light Company does not include research and development in the future test year, fully projected 
future test year or for the 12 month period immediately prior to the test year.
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Line 
No. Description/Purpose

1/1/2021 - 
12/31/2021 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 Increase (Decrease)

1 Donations 1,609                        2,069                        (460)                          

2 Miscellaneous 287                           369                           (81)                            

3 Total 1,896$                      2,438$                      (542)$                        

Note:

Line 
No. Description/Purpose 1/1/2022- 12/31/2022 1/1/2021 - 

12/31/2021 Increase (Decrease)
1 Donations 1,645                        1,609                        37                             

2 Miscellaneous 294                           287                           7                               

3 Total 1,939$                      1,896$                      43$                           

Note:

Duquesne Light Company
Charitable and Civic Contributions - Account 426

For the Period
(Thousands of Dollars)

Charitable and civic contributions are charged to "Other income and deductions", account 426 and not to operating 
expense

Charitable and civic contributions are charged to "Other income and deductions", account 426 and not to operating 
expense



DFR II-D-8 
Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota 

 
Q.8. Provide an analysis by function of charges by affiliates, for the test year and the 12-month period 

immediately prior to the test year, for services rendered included in the operating expenses of the 
filing company.  Explain the nature of the service and the basis on which charges or allocations 
are made, including a copy of applicable contract.  Also, explain major variances between the 
charges for the test year and the corresponding charges for the prior 12-month period. 

  
A.8. Please see Attachment DFR II-D-8. 
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 Variance

Accounting & Treasury 1,374.4$                     1,457.8$                     83.4$                        
Sr Management 914.2                          969.6                          55.5                          
Office of General Counsel 476.5                          505.4                          28.9                          
Technology 125.7                          133.3                          7.6                            
Human Resources 91.3                            96.8                            5.5                            
Operations 55.0                            58.4                            3.3                            
Customer Care 12.7                            13.5                            0.8                            

3,049.8$                     3,234.8$                     185.0$                      

Allocations to DLC from parent -                              -                              -                            
Allocations to DLC from affiliate -                              -                              -                            

Net 3,049.8$                     3,234.8$                     185.0$                      

[1]

1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 Variance

Accounting & Treasury 1,457.8$                     1,486.8$                     29.0$                        
Senior Management 969.6                          988.9                          19.3                          
Office of General Counsel 505.4                          515.5                          10.1                          
Technology 133.3                          136.0                          2.7                            
Human Resources 96.8                            98.7                            1.9                            
Operations 58.4                            59.5                            1.2                            
Customer Service 13.5                            13.7                            0.3                            

3,234.8$                     3,299.2$                     64.4$                        

Allocations to DLC from parent -                              -                              -                            
Allocations to DLC from affiliate -                              -                              -                            

Net 3,234.8$                     3,299.2$                     64.4$                        

Function

The Office of General Counsel allocation is budgeted to decrease due to additional costs incurred in 2017 associated with 
affiliated Company legal proceedings.

Duquesne Light Company
Administrative Services Charged to Affiliates

Operating Expense
(Thousands of Dollars)

Function

Duquesne Light Company (“DLC”) provides various administrative and general services for its subsidiaries and affiliated 
companies.  Attachment II-D-8a is a copy of this agreement.  



DFR II-D-8
Page 2 of 7

Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota
Duquesne Light Company

Purchased Power
Purchased Power Expense

Duquesne Light Company (DLC)  no longer purchases a portion its electricity supply needs from Duquesne Power, 
LLC as Duquesne Power, LLC does not participate in POLR auction under its POLR VIII agreement.

(Thousands of Dollars)
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 Variance

Communications 3,992.8$                   4,097.0$                   104$                         

1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 Variance

Communications 4,097.0$                   4,167.5$                   71$                           

Function

Function

Duquesne Light Company
Fiber Lease and Lit Services

Operating Expenses
(Thousands of Dollars)

The fiber optic network lease is an approved arrangement entered into between DLC and its DQE Communications affiliate. The 
network is used for voice and data communications between Company facilities, including supervision, protection and control of 
the distribution and substation systems. Attachment II-D-8b is a copy of this agreement. The fiber may be located on or within DLC 
poles, conduits, ducts and related property.  In addition,  pursuant to the terms of the Sonet Fiber Use Agreement entered into in 
2006 between Duquesne Light and its DQE Communications affiliate,  Duquesne Light replaced its outdated microwave network 
with access to a fiber optic ring that connects the operations control center with equipment at various locations throughout the 
service territory.  Attachment II-D-8c is a copy of that agreement.  

In addition, Duquesne Light maintains a Master Service Agreement with DQE Communications which provides the general terms 
and conditions and a framework within which Duquesne Light may from time to time purchase certain telecommunications and 
related infrastructure services from DQE Communications.  Specifically the agreement relates to (i) Metro Ethernet & Internet 
Services; (ii) Colocation Services and (iii) Managed Services.  See agreement maintained at Attachment II-D-8f.
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

Function 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 Variance

Metering Reading / AMR -$                           -$                           -$                           

Function 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 Variance

Metering Reading / AMR -$                           -$                           -$                           

Duquesne Light Company
Electronic Meter Reading

Operations Expense
(Thousands of Dollars)

Electronic meter reading services are no longer provided from Datacom Information Systems, LLC (an affiliate).  

Historically, Datacom provided services related to electronic meter reading services and related services for all DLC's customers who 
currently, or in the future utilize electronic metering devices with Encoder Receiver Transmitters (ERT). The ERT meters number 
approximately 570,000. They are principally utilized by DLC's residential and small commercial customers. The services provided 
include (1) the use of network facilities, including Cell Control Units and Network Control Nodes, over which the meter reading data is 
transmitted and obtained; (2) maintenance, replacement, construction, and alteration of the network system as needed to provide and 
operate said meter reading services; (3) leases and licenses required in order to physically locate and operate the network devices 
throughout DLC's service territory; (4) such other services that are needed or beneficial and agreed to by the parties and the 
Commission. 
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota
Duquesne Light Company

Intercorporate Tax Payment Agreement

Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. (DLH), the parent of DLC entered into an Intercorporate Tax Payment 
Agreement with its affiliated companies, effective January 1, 1992.  The purpose of the Agreement was to 
provide for payments between the parent company and its affiliated companies with respect to each 
company's share of the consolidated income tax liability of the entire affiliated group.  See DLC Exhibit 4, and 
Testimony of Matthew Simpson – Statement No. 7.  Refer to attachment II-D-8d for a copy of this agreement.
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

Function 1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 Variance

Intercompany Interest 1,379$                     1,128$                     (251.1)$                    

Function 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2021 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 Variance

Intercompany Interest 1,128$                     423$                        (705.0)$                    

On January 17, 2010, DLC entered into a short-term affiliated interest agreement with its parent, Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc (DLH).  This 
agreement provided DLC with the ability to borrow from DLH in the form of short-term intercompany loans in an amount not to exceed $200 
million at any given point in time.   In February 2021, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission approved DLC's application to amend the 
affiliated interest agreement requesting an increase of the maximum borrowing capacity of this short term intercompany borrowing facility 
from $200.0 million to $300.0 million.  As of December 31, 2020, DLC had $10.0 million of intercompany loans outstanding.  The specific 
terms of the affiliated interest agreement are included as Attachment II-D-8e.

Duquesne Light Company
Affiliated Interest Agreement

(Thousands of Dollars)
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota
Duquesne Light Company
Cash Pool Arrangement

Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. (DLH), the parent company of DLC, established a Cash Pool in November 
1997.  The Cash Pool was established as a mechanism to concentrate excess funds and combine the cash 
of DLH and its subsidiaries to invest in short term investments.  DLC does not participate within the Cash 
Pool Arrangement.  



411 Seventh Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15219        DuquesneLight.com 

Emily M. Farah    411 Seventh Avenue       Tel:  412-393-6431 
Counsel, Regulatory            Mail drop 15-7                  efarah@duqlight.com 

              Pittsburgh, PA  15219 

February 21, 2020 

Via Electronic Filing 

Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission  
400 North Street  
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Re: Affiliated Interest Agreement between Duquesne Light Company and Its Affiliates 
Docket No. G-2018-3002809 

Dear Secretary Chiavetta, 

Pursuant to the Secretarial Letter in the above-captioned matter dated January 22, 2020, 
enclosed please find the executed copy of Duquesne Light Company’s Administrative Services 
Agreement (“ASA”).  Signatures were obtained for all entities except DH Energy LP, which was 
dissolved on January 13, 2020.  BrightR, Inc. was also dissolved in January 2020.  Included with 
the executed ASA and labeled as “Updated Appendix B” is the most recent organizational chart, 
which removes DH Energy LP and BrightR, Inc. from the corporate organizational structure. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions, comments, or concerns. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Emily M. Farah 
Counsel, Regulatory 

Enclosures 

cc: Jeff McCracken (with enclosures, via email - jmccracken@pa.gov) 
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PENNSYLVANIA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

O. BOX 3265 , HARRISBURG , PA 17105-3265 IN REPLY
PLEASE REFER

TO OUR FILE
'""""""'(0"""0"

June 2 , 2006
00061167

GARY A JACK
DUQUESNE LIGHT CaMP ANY
411 SEVENTH AVE
MAIL DROP 8-
PITTSBURGH PA 15219

Re: Affiliated Interest Agreement between Duquesne Light Company and
DQE Communications LLC

Dear Mr. Jack:

On April 6 , 2006 , Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne ) and DQE
Communications LLC ("DQEC") filed an Affiliated Interest Agreement. This agreement was
filed in accordance with the requirements of Section 2l02(b) of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. c.S.
~2l02(b). On April 13 , 2006 , the Commission extended the period for consideration of this
Agreement until further order of the Commission.

The Agreement relates to the lease of a fiber optic communications system (Sonet
Fiber Use Agreement) between Duquesne and DQEC.

Upon review of the company s filing, it does not appear that this filing is
unreasonable or contrary to the public interest. Therefore, this filing is hereby approved.
However, approval of this filing does not constitute a determination that such filing is consistent
with the public interest and that the associated costs or expenses are reasgnable or prudent for the
purposes of determining just and reasonable rates. Furthermore, the Commission s approval is
contingent upon the possibility that subsequent audits, reviews, and inquiry, in any Commission
proceeding, may be conducted, pursuant to 66 Pa. c.S. ~~ 2102 et seq.

In addition, this approval will apply only to the agreement(s), service(s), matters
and parties specifically and clearly defined under this instant filing, as well as under any
associated and previously filed filings.

Sincerely,

James J. McNulty
Secretary

cc: Kerry Klinefelter, FUS
Kathleen Aunkst, Secretary s Bureau
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April 6 , 2006

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

James 1. McNulty, Secretary
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Commonwealth Keystone Building, 2nd Floor
400 North Street
Harrisburg, PA l 7120

Re: Application of Duquesne Light
Company for approval of Affiliated
Interest Agreements between
Duquesne Light Company and
DQE Communications, LLC

Dear Secretary McNulty:

Enclosed for filing are one original and four copies of the Affiliated Interest
Application and related documents of Duquesne Light Company requesting approval for
it to enter into a Sonet Fiber Use Agreement with DQE Communications LLc. Should
you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Enclosures
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BEFORE THE
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

Application of Duquesne Light
Company for approval of Affiliated
Interest Agreement between
Duquesne Light Company and
DQE Communications , LLC

Docket No.

Affiliated Interest Application
(66 Pa. C. S. Section 2102)

Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne ) requests approval pursuant to Section
2102 of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C. S. ~21O2 , of the Sonet Fiber Use Agreement
between Duquesne and its affiliate , DQE Communications , LLC ("DQEC"), and sets
forth the following in support thereof:

The name and address of the Applicant is:

Duquesne Light Company
411 Seventh Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

The name and address of the Applicant's attorney are:

Gary Jack, Esq.
Assistant General Counsel
411 Seventh Avenue, Mail Drop 8-
Pittsburgh , PA 15219
Phone: 412-393-3662
Fax: 412-393-5602
E-mail: gjack(g)duqlightcom

Duquesne is a duly incorporated Pennsylvania public utility engaged in the

distribution of electric service to the public , primarily within Allegheny and Beaver

Counties , Pennsylvania, in an area of approximately 800 square miles. The Company

corporate headquarters is located at 411 Seventh Avenue , Pittsburgh , P A 15219.

Attachment II-D-8c 
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DQE Communications , LLC ("DQEC") is a Pennsylvania limited liability

company organized for the purpose of fiber optic telecommunications network services.

Applicants are affiliated with each other. Duquesne is a first tier

subsidiary of Duquesne Light Holdings , Inc. DQEC is a first tier subsidiary of DQE

Systems , Inc. , which is a first tier unregulated subsidiary of Duquesne Light Holdings

Inc.

Pursuant to the terms of the Sonet Fiber Use Agreement, attached as

Exhibit A , Duquesne seeks to improve its internal communications with its substations by

replacing the existing microwave and copper communications plant serving its protective

relay system with a fiber optic communications system ("Sonet Network") by leasing

certain portions of DQEC' s fiber optic network in Allegheny, Beaver and Washington

counties.

7. The salient terms of the Sonet Fiber Use Agreement are as follows:

a. The Agreement facilitates improved internal communications with

Duquesne substations by replacing the existing microwave and copper

communications plant serving its protective relay system with a fiber

optic communications system leased from DQEc. Two single mode

fiber optic strands configured in a point-to-point mode will be leased;

b. The Agreement provides that the Sonet Network constructed by

DQEC for Duquesne will consist of two fiber rings , diversely routed

between all Sonet equipment locations;

c. The Agreement provides fair, reasonable and non-discriminatory rates

and fair and reasonable terms and conditions for the uses and services

authorized thereunder; and

d. The Agreement provides for the continued safe and reliable operation

of Duquesne s electric facilities and will not jeopardize the safety,

Attachment II-D-8c 
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reliability or quality of electric service provided to Duquesne

customers.

e. The Agreement provides for lease payments for operation , use

maintenance and support for the needed communication facilities at

the rate of $75 250 per month. That rate is fixed for a 15 year period.

The term is for 15 years , with the possibility of extension(s). Any

additional construction beyond the present facilities and build-outs to

be constructed this year, shall be done by request and payment for

services shall be at market based pricing.

8. The Agreement is reasonable and consistent with the public interest, and in

furtherance of Duquesne s obligation to provide safe

, ?

ddequate and reasonable service to

its customers.

WHEREFORE Duquesne respectfully requests the Commission to approve

Duquesne entering into the Sonet Fiber Use Agreement with DQE Communications

LLC..

Duquesne Light Company

Dated: April -, 2006 By:
Jeffrey A. Coward

Gary A. Jack
Assistant General Counsel
Duquesne Light Company
411 Seventh Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
412-393- 1541

giack 

(g) 

duqlightcom
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AFFIDA VIT

Jeffrey Coward , being duly sworn (affirmed) according to law , depose and say

that I am authorized to make this affidavit on behalf of Duquesne Light Company, being

the holder of the office of Director with that Company, and that the facts above set forth

are true and correct to the best of my knowledge , information and belief , and the

Company expects t~ be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof.

Sworn and subscribed before me this day of 2006.

My Commission Expires
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISStON 
P.O. BOX 3265, HARRISBURG, PA 17105-3265 JU 

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY 
8th FLOOR MAIL DROP 8-2 
411 SEVENTH AVENUE 
PITTSBURGH PA 15219 
A TIN MR RICHARD S HERSKOVITZ 

June 5, 2006 

IN REPLY PLEASE 
-- F 20Di:J~EFERTOOURFILE 

G-00051152 

Re: Affiliated Interest Agreement for an Intercorporate Tax Payment Agreement 
among Duquesne Light Company and its affiliated companies 

Dear Mr. Herskovitz: 

On December 1, 2005, Duquesne Light Company filed pursuant to Chapter 21 of 
the Pennsylvania Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. §2102, an Affiliated Interest Agreement requesting 
approval of an Intercorporate Income Tax Payment Agreement among the Duquesne Light 
Holdings, Inc. (Holding) affiliated companies covered by Holding's consolidated income tax 
filings. 

Upon review of the filing, it does not appear that the arrangement is unreasonable 
and contrary to the public interest. Therefore, this filing is approved. However, approval of this 
filing does not constitute a determination that such a filing is consistent with public interest, and 
that the associated costs are reasonable or prudent for the purposes of determining just and 
reasonable rates. Furthermore, the Commission's approval is contingent upon the possibility that 
subsequent audits, reviews, and inquiry, in any Commission proceeding, may be conducted, 
pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S. §§ 2102, et seq. 

In addition, this approval will apply only to the agreement(s), services(s), matters, 
and parties specifically and clearly defined under this instant filing as well as any associated and 
previously filed filings. 

cc: Kerry Klinefelter, FUS 
Kathleen Aunkst, Secretary's Bureau 
David Huff, FUS 

Sinceely,, lit 
Jame/4ulty 
Secretary 
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Duquesne Light 
Our Energy ... Your Power 

Richard S. Herskovitz 
Assistant General Counsel 

OVERNIGHT MAIL 

411 Seventh Avenue 
alh Floor 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 

James J. McNulty, Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street, 2nd Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Tel 412-393-3662 
Fax 412-393-5602 
rherskovitz@duqlight.com 

December 1, 2005 

Re: Application of Duquesne Light Company 

Dear Secretary McNulty: 

For Approval of Affiliated Interest Agreement 
Docket No. c;; -- CJOoS-! rs-;z.. 

'l 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne") are the 
original and three (3) copies of an Application for Approval Nunc Pro Tune of an 
Affiliated Interest Agreement between Duquesne and its affiliated companies. 
Specifically, this Application, filed pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S. §2102 of the Public Utility 
Code, requests Commission approval ofDuquesne's inclusion as a party in an 

· Intercorporate Tax Payment Agreement. 

Also, a fourth copy of this Application is enclosed to be date-stamped and 
returned to me in the self-addressed stamped envelope for my file. 

Thank you. 

Very truly yours, 

/(xf 

Enclosures 
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BEFORE THE 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of Duquesne Light 
Company for approval of an 
Affiliated Interest Agreement 
Between Duquesne Light Company 
And Affiliated Companies 
(Tax Sharing Arrangement) 

Docket No. ------

Affiliated Interest Application 
(66 Pa. C. S. Section 2102) 

Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne") requests approval Nunc Pro Tune, 
pursuant to Section 2102 of the Public Utility Code ("Code"), 66 Pa. C. S. §2102, of its 
entering into a tax payment agreement with its affiliates, and sets forth the following in 
support thereof: 

1. The name and address of the Applicant is: 

Duquesne Light Company 
411 Seventh A venue 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 

2. The name and address of the Applicant's attorney are: 

Richard S. Herskovitz 
Assistant General Counsel 
411 Seventh A venue, Mail Drop 8-2 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 
Phone: 412-393-3662 
Fax: 412-393-5602 
E-mail: rherskovitz@duqlight.com 

3. Duquesne is a duly incorporated Pennsylvania public utility engaged in the 

distribution of electric service to the public, primarily within Allegheny and Beaver 

Counties, Pennsylvania, in an area of approximately 800 square miles. Duquesne's 

corporate headquarters is located at 411 Seventh A venue, Pittsburgh, PA 15219. 

1 
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4. Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. ("DLH"), formerly known as DQE, Inc. 

the parent company of Duquesne, entered into an Intercorporate Tax Payment Agreement 

("Agreement") with its affiliated companies, effective January 1, 1992. The purpose of 

the Agreement was to provide for payments between the parent company and its 

affiliated companies with respect to each company's share of the consolidated income tax 

liability of the entire affiliated group. A complete and detailed description of the intent 

and operation of this tax sharing arrangement is set forth in the Agreement attached as 

Exhibit A. 

5. Duquesne's inclusion in the Agreement is evidenced by the signature of 

Raymond H. Pap.za, former Duquesne Controller, on an undated counterpart signature 

page attached to the Agreement (page 7 of Exhibit A). This signature page has only 

recently been located by Duquesne. 

6. In the Public Utility Commission's most recent Management Audit of 

Duquesne (field work commencing in August, 2004 and ending in March, 2005), the 

Auditors investigated whether Duquesne's inclusion in the Agreement had been approved 

by the Commission under the affiliated interest provisions of the Code. As stated in 

paragraph 5, neither Duquesne nor the Auditors were able to locate a counterpart 

signature page for Duquesne. Duquesne contended that its inclusion in the Agreement 

would have been authorized by the Company's Administrative Services Agreements 

("ASA"), which was previously approved by the Commission. Although a final report of 

the audit has not yet been issued, the Auditors have indicated that, in their opinion, the 

ASA did not contain such an authorization. 

7. Duquesne subsequently located the Duquesne Light Company counterpart 

signature page and is now filing for approval of its inclusion in the Agreement under the 

affiliate provisions of the Code, retroactive to January 1, 1992. 

2 

Attachment II-D-8d 
Page 5 of 22



8. Inclusion by Duquesne in the tax sharing arrangement is appropriate for 

accounting purposes so as to allocate taxes among affiliates of a holding company 

according to taxable income. 

WHEREFORE, Duquesne respectfully requests the Commission to approve 

Duquesne's inclusion as a party in the subject Intercorporate Tax Payment Agreement, 

retroactive to January 1, 1992. 

Dated: December l, 2005 

3 

Duquesne Light Company 

By: ~i.l~ 
Mark. Kaplan 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 
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AFFIDAVIT 

I, Mark E. Kaplan, being duly sworn (affirmed) according to law, depose and say 

that I am authorized to make this affidavit on behalf of Duquesne Light Company, being 

the holder of the office of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer with that 

Company, and that the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge, information and belief, and the Company expects to be able to prove the 

same at any hearing hereof. 

f¥Y\~t~ Mat E. Kaplan 

Sworn and subscribed before me this \st day of Ott~b<.(2005. 

4 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Mary Jane Hammer, Notary Public 
City of Pittsburgh, Allegheny County 
My Commission Expires Oct. 6, 2007 

Member, Penn~vlvv1i.i> .0$~0ciation of Notaries 
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Exhibit A 

INTBRCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated 
and effective as of January 1, 1992, among DQE, Inc. ("Parent 
Company"), and its Affiliated Companies (as defined by this 
agreement) . 

Recitals: 

A. This Agreement is entered into by the Parent Company and 
each other member of the "affiliated group", as defined in Section 
1504 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended (the "Code"), 
of which the Parent company is a member (each such other member 
being called an "Affiliate Company" and all such other members 
being called collectively the "Affiliated Companies") and which are 
includible in the Parent company's consolidated annual federal 
Income Tax return. The "Parent Affiliated Group" means the 
affiliated group of which the Parent company is the common parent 
company in any taxable year of the Parent Company. 

B. The Parent Company and its Affiliated Companies wish to 
enter into an agreement to provide for payments to Parent Company 
by, or by Parent Company to, each of the Affiliated Companies with 
respect to federal Income Taxes, as that term is defined in Section 
2.02 below . 

c. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for payments 
between the Parent Company and its Affiliated Companies with 
respect to the members' shares of the consolidated Income Tax 
liability of the Parent Affiliated Group (each such payment being 
called an "Intercorporate Tax Payment") and is not intended to 
affect any separate company financial statement accounting, the 
elected calculation of earnings and profits as determined under 
Code Section 1552 or any other tax or accounting issues.· 

D. subject to the terms hereof, the general intent of this 
Agreement is to provide for (i) payment to the Parent Company, by 
each Affiliate Company which would have incurred a separate return 
Income Tax liability for any period (a "Tax Reporting Period") with 
respect to which the consolidated Income Tax liability of the 
Parent Affiliated Group is estimated, reported or finally 
determined, of the amount of Income Taxes which the respective 
Affiliate Company would have incurred on a separate-return basis 
and (ii) payment, by the Parent Company, to each Affiliate company 
that generated on a separate-return basis a net operating loss or 
capital loss (each individually a "tax loss") or a tax credit which 
is not utilized by the respective Affiliate Company in such Tax 
Reporting Period but is determined under the terms of this 
Agreement to be applied against separate-return income or Income 
Tax liability of the Parent Company or another Affiliate Company, 
of an amount equal to the sum of (a) the product of each such tax 
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loss so applied multiplied by the effective tax rate of Income Tax 
paid or payable by the Parent company for such Tax Reporting Period 
on the consolidated income of the Parent Affiliated Group (sUch 
effective rate being determined before the application of tax 
credits) plus (b) the amount of tax credits so generated and 
applied. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally 
bound hereby, agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT 

1.01. Payments by the Parent Company to Affiliated 
Companies. The amount of the reduction in the separate return 
Income Tax liability or the amount of the refunds or credits 
received by the Parent or any member of the Parent Affiliated Group 
from the use of a tax loss or tax credit attributable to an 
Affiliate Company (a "Loss company") shall be remitted by the 
Parent Company to the Affiliate company in cash on the respective 
due date of Income Taxes to which the Parent Company is subject, 
whether under Code Section 6655 with regard to estimated payments, 
Code Section 6151 with regard to payments required to accompany the 
consolidated federal Income Tax return of the Parent Affiliated 
Group or any later date of any actual payment of Income Taxes 
pursuant to administrative adjustment or unappealable final 
determination of a court of competent jurisdiction; provided, 
always, that such payment shall be conditioned on the Loss 
Affiliate Company continuing as a member of the Parent Affiliated 
Group for not less than 30 days after the respective due date and 
that any Loss Affiliate company which ceases to be such a member 
within 30 days after the respective due date but has received an 
Intercorporate Tax Payment shall repay the Intercorporate Tax 
Payment to Parent on demand. In determining the amounts of the 
Loss Affiliate Company's separate return tax losses and tax credits 
and the amount of the Intercorporate Tax Payment, the tax losses 
and tax credits of the Loss Affiliate Company determined on a 
separate-return basis and available for application to the 
separate-return Income Tax liability of other members of the Parent 
Affiliated Group shall exclude (i) all tax losses and tax credits 
of the Loss Affiliate Company which were applied to its or another 
member's separate-return Income Tax Liability for any prior Tax 
Reporting Period and (ii) all tax losses and tax credits of the 
Loss Affiliate Company which may be applied to reduce the Loss 
Affiliate Company's separate return Income Tax liability for the 
current Tax Reporting Period. If for a Tax Reporting Period the 
total tax losses (or tax credits) of the Parent Company. and all 
Loss Affiliate Companies, determined on a separate-return basis, 
exceed the total separate-return income (or Income Tax liability) 

2 
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of all members of the Parent Affiliated Group with positive, 
separate-return income or Income Tax liability (so that not all 
available tax losses or tax credits may be utilized in the Tax 
Reporting Period), then, subject to the SRLY rules and any other 
rules limiting for tax purposes the intercompany availability of 
tax losses or tax credits, the available tax losses and tax credits 
respectively of a Loss Affiliate Company shall be deemed to be 
applied intercompany in the amount equal to (i) the total of the 
tax losses and tax credits, respectively, which the members with 
positive net income and separate-return Income Tax liability can 
utilize times (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the tax 
losses (or tax credits, as the case may be) of the Loss Affiliate 
company available and usable for such Tax Reporting Period and the 
denominator of which is the total of the available and usable tax 
losses (or tax credits, as the case may be) of all Loss Affiliate 
Companies. The Intercompany Tax Payment to a Loss Affiliate 
Company shall equal the sum of (a) the product of the amount of tax 
loss of the Loss Affiliate Company which is applied for the Tax 
Reporting Period to separate-return income of any other member 
multiplied by the effective rate of Income Taxes (determined before 

- application of tax credits) paid or payable by the Parent Company 
on the consolidated federal Income Tax liability of the Parent 
Affiliated Group for that Tax Reporting Period plus (b) the amount 
of tax credits of the Loss Affiliate Company which are applied for 
the Tax Reporting Period to separate-return Income Tax liability of 
any other member. The amount of all items of tax losses and tax 
credits of the Parent Company and each Affiliate Company shall be 
determined under the terms of this Agreement. To the extent that 
this Agreement does not cover the treatment or timing of a 
particular item, the determination shall be made under the Code. 

1. 02. overpayments. The portion of any overpayment of Income 
Taxes resulting in a refund ·· which is attributable to a Loss 
Affiliate Company shall be remitted by the Parent company to the 
Loss Affiliate Company upon receipt of the overpayment by the 
Parent company, provided, always, that such Loss Affiliate Company 
is then a member of the Parent Affiliated Group and that any 
overpayment of Income Taxes which is treated by the Parent Company 
as a payment of consolidated Income Taxes for a succeeding Tax 
Reporting Period and which is attributable to a Loss Affiliate 
Company may be retained by the Parent Company, so long as such 
overpayment (or portion thereof) is credited as an Intercompany Tax 
Payment, pursuant to Section 1.03 below, of any actual separate 
return Income Tax liability of such Loss Affiliate company for such 
succeeding Tax Reporting Period. 

1.03. Payments by Affiliated Companies to Parent Company. 
The amount of the positive separate-return Income Tax liability of 
each Affiliate Company for the respective Tax Reporting· Period 
shall be remitted by the Affiliate Company to the Parent Company in 
cash on the due date, of any actual or required payment of 

3 
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consolidated Income Taxes of the Parent Affiliated Group, whether 
such payment is due or made with respect to the estimated, reported 
or finally determined consolidated Income Tax liability of the 
Parent Affiliated Group. 

ARTICLE II 
TAX LIABILITY 

2.01. Determination of Separate Return Tax Liability. For 
purposes of determining the separate return Income Tax liability of 
each Affiliate Company, the tax liability of each member shall be 
computed as if it had filed a separate Income Tax return for the 
taxable period. The separate return Income Tax liability·shall be 
computed in a manner consistent with the provisions of Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.1552-l(a)(2)(ii) and as provided in Section 
1.01 above. Any penalty or interest with respect to any 
underpayment of estimated or final consolidated Income Taxes of the 
Parent Affiliated Group shall be attributed to the respective 
member to which the adjustment of income, deduction or credit 
resulting in the penalty or interest is attributable, but if there 
are no such members, then to those Affiliate companies with 
positive separate-return Income Tax Liability (as reported, 
adjusted or redetermined) for such Tax Reporting Period, ratably in 
proportion to their respective separate-return Income Tax 
liabilities. If any adjustment is made to the consolidated Income 
Tax liability of the Parent Affiliated Group for any year by 
amended return, by adjustment upon audit by the Internal Revenue 
Service conceded by the Parent Company, or by final nonappealable· 
determination of a court of competent jurisdiction, the overpayment 
or deficiency for such year shall be allocated to those members or 
former members which had the items of income, deduction or credit 
to which the overpayment or deficiency is attributable. If due to 
disaffiliation of a former member or any other reason there is no 
Affiliate company to which an Intercompany Tax Payment may be paid 
(or an overpayment paid or credited), such payment or credit shall 
be retained by the Parent company. 

2.02. Income Taxes. For purposes of this agreement the term 
"Income Taxes" shall mean federal income taxes, taxes on preference 
items, and any minimum tax or alternative minimum tax, imposed 
under the Code or any successor statute, together with any interest 
and penalties related thereto. 

ARTICLE III 
COVENANTS 

3.01. Continuation of this Agreement. For so long as the 
Parent Company is permitted it shall continue to file consolidated 
federal Income Tax returns pursuant to Code Section 1501 for the 

4 

Attachment II-D-8d 
Page 11 of 22



Parent Affiliated Group, and this Agreement shall continue in 
effect and be implemented and enforced in accordance with its 
terms. Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the Parent company 
and all Affiliated Companies, any corporation which becomes an 
includible corporation in the Parent Affiliated Group shall be 
treated as a party to this Agreement, effective as of the first day 
the results of its operations for that day are included within the 
consolidated taxable income of the Parent Affiliated Group, upon 
(i) execution and delivery to the Parent Company of an addendum 
hereto agreeing to be bound and benefitted by the terms of this 
Agreement or (ii) the inclusion (constituting implied consent) of 
the results of its operations in any consolidated federal Income 
Tax return of the Parent Affiliated Group. 

3.02. Decisions Affecting the Amount of the Intercorporate 
Tax Payments. In determining the amount of Intercorporate Tax 
Payments to be made under the terms of this Agreement, the Parent 
company shall make decisions concerning tax matters, refunds or 
credits of the Parent Affiliated Group, which would affect (for 
purposes of determinations of Intercorporate Tax !'ayments) the 
separate Income Tax return liability, refunds or credits of the 
respective Affiliated Companies (including, without limitation, the 
making, not making, or revoking of elections, resolution of 
disputes in connection with audits of Income Tax returns, and 
defending or settling any Income Tax return or any matter related 
thereto) in a manner which minimizes the cumulative total 
consolidated Income Tax liability of the Parent Affiliated Group. 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

4.01. Amendments, Modifications and Supplements. Except as 
provided in Section 3. 01 above regarding additional includible 
corporations, no amendment, modification or supplement relating 
hereto shall be effective unless in writing signed by or on behalf 
of the party to be charged therewith. This Agreement may be 
executed in one or more counterparts and with counterpart signature 
pages, all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. · Furthermore, it is agreed that an Affiliate 
Company's execution of a counterpart signature page for attachment 
originally, or as an addendum hereto as provided in Section 3.01 
above, shall be effective to bind all Affiliated Companies without 
reexecution by previously includible corporations. 

4. 02. Duration; survival. All covenants and agreements 
contained herein shall continue in full force and effect from and 
after the hereof so long as the Parent Affiliated Group remains and 
so long as the Parent Affiliated Group continues in filing a 
federal consolidated Income Tax return. 
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4.03. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, 
and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their officers 
thereunto duly authorized, have executed and delivered this 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 

PARENT COMPANY 
DQE, INC. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 

(See attached counterpart signature pages] 

6 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
MONTAUK, INC. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
DUQUESNE ENTERPRISES, INC. 

By: 
Name: Fredericks. Potter 
Title: President 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
MONONGAHELA LIGHT & POWER COMPANY 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART, SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
PROPERTY VENTURES, LTD. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
KEYSTONE ENERGY COMPANY 

By: 
Name: Frederick S. Potter 
Title: President 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
BUSHTON, INC. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Ctw ~ 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
ALLEGHENY DEVELOPMENT CORP. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 
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AFFILIATE COMPANY 
COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO 
INTERCORPORATE TAX PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
DQE, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES DATED JANUARY 1, 1992 

AFFILIATE COMPANY 
DUQUESNE PROPERTIES, INC. 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

·~~~ 

/~~:A. Date of Execution: 
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PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION NOV

Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265

Public Meeting held November 9, 2006

Commissioners Present:

Wendell F. Holland, Chairman
James H. Cawley, Vice Chairman
Kim Pizzingrilli
Terrance J. Fitzpatrick

Docket Number:
Affiliated interest agreement among Duquesne Light
Company and its non-jurisdictional affiliates for G-00051141
participation in a cash pool arrangement.

ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

On October 7, 2005, Duquesne Light Company (Duquesne Light) filed,

pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. §§2101, et

seq., an affiliated interest agreement for participation in a Cash Pool (the Pool)

arrangement among its affiliates. By Secretarial Letter dated October 7, 2005, the

Commission extended the 30-day statutory consideration period until further order o f the

Commission as provided in Chapter 21 of the Public Utility Code.

Background

Duquesne Light is a jurisdictional utility that provides electric distribution

and transmission services primarily within Allegheny and Beaver counties. Duquesne
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Light Holdings, Inc. (DLH) is an energy services holding company formed to serve as the

holding company for Duquesne Light and to engage in other unregulated energy and

energy-related businesses.

DLH, formerly DQE, Inc., originally established its Cash Pool in

November of 1997 as a mechanism to concentrate and combine the excess funds of it and

its affiliates for investing in short-term securities. The aggregation of these funds was

designed to provide a more efficient means for managing the excess cash of the DLH

subsidiaries. The applicants state that Duquesne Light became a member of the Pool in

July of 2000.

In the most recent Management Audit conducted by the Commission, the

Audit Staff discovered a number of arrangements or transactions that they felt were not

covered by Commission approved affiliated interest agreements. One of these was the

participation of Duquesne Light in the Cash Pool arrangement. Duquesne Light,

however, contends that its participation in the Pool was authorized by the Commission

under a previously approved Administrative Services Agreement (ASA). The Auditors in

turn contend that the ASA did not contain authorization for Duquesne Light to participate

in the Pool. In its Implementation Plan, which was acknowledged by the Commission at

its Public Meeting of June 1, 2006, Duquesne Light accepted the recommendations in the

report issued by PA Public Utility Commission Bureau of Audits including the

requirement to file an affiliated interest agreement for Duquesne Light’s participation in

the Pool.

Even though Duquesne Light originally disputed the Auditors’ conclusion

regarding its participation in the Pool, the company agreed to file for approval of its

membership and participation in the Pool under the affiliated provisions of the Code.
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Subsequently, Duquesne Light exited the pool November 28, 2005, pending Commission

approval of this affiliated interest application for participation in the Pool.

Subsequent to making its filing Duquesne Light responded to the

Commission’s requests for additional information.

The Cash Pool Agreement

The Cash Pool is used by DLH as a mechanism to coneerttrate excess funds

and combine the cash of DLH and its subsidiaries to invest in short-term investments.

The applicants state that by aggregating their funds DLH and its subsidiaries are able to

invest in short-term securities previously not available to individual Pool participants.

Additionally, the applicants aver that the Pool is a more efficient method of managing

.. fimds by reducing the administrative costs of the Pool participants and results in higher

investment returns for the Pool participants.

Participants in the Cash Pool include DLH and all of the wholly-owned

direct and indirect subsidiaries ofDLH. DQE Capital Corporation acts as the Agent and

is the current Pool administrator. The cash position of the Pool participants ~s determined

by the Agent on a daily basis. The sources of these funds include normal operating

receipts, external borrowings or contributions made by DLH. Pool participants, with the

exception of DLH, can contribute to the Pool but cannot borrow from the Pool. DLH

through the Agent is permitted to borrow from the Pool but does not contribute to the

Pool. The Agent is permitted to borrow from the Pool to facilitate intercompany

borrowing arrangements and operating requirements. There are no individual limits on

the amounts that any individual participant can deposit into the Pool and DQE Capital

Corporation borrowings from the Pool are only limited by the amount deposited into the

Pool. Excess cash, the net of the amount contributed less borrowings by the Agent, will

3
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be invested by the Agent in approved investments that are consistent with the Duquesne

Light Holdings Short Term Investment PolicyI.

DQE Capital Corporation, acting as the Agent, is the only Pool participant

that may borrow from the Pool and its borrowing are only limited by the amount that is

contributed by the other Pool members. The borrowings by the Agent are then lent to

DLH as a demand loan. Borrowings made by that Agent from the Pool are at an internal

short-term borrowing rate, typically the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The

Agent then lends to DLH at an interest rate equal to the rate charged by external lenders

on DLH’s current revolving credit arrangement. The interest rate charged to DLH on its

revolving credit facility, and therefore on its borrowings from the Pool, is LIBOR plus a

¯margin based on DLH’s current senior unsecured credit rating. The margin between the

borrowing rate from the Pool and lending rate to DLH charged by the Agent is used by

the Agent to cover the administrative costs of operating the Pool.

DLH may use the money for general corporate purposes or may advance

funds to its subsidiaries on an as needed basis. These advances may be in the form of a

capital contribution or a loan. Advances to Duquesne Light are done only in the form of

a capital contribution.

Should a participant require its cash that is deposited in the Pool and there

is insufficient cash to meet its withdrawal needs, the Agent would make a demand against

DLH for repayment of all or a portion of its loan. If need be, DLH would access its

available credit lines to obtain the cash needed to satisfy the Agent’s demand.

~ According to the Applicants, the Short Term Investment Policy of DLH is designed to provide a high degree of
safety, liquidity and to a lesser extent yield. Permissible investments include but are not limited to: U.S. Treasury
obligations, Commercial Paper, Certificates of Deposits, Bankers Acceptances and Money Market Funds.

4"
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Discussion

In reviewing Duquesne Light’s participation in the Pool, the Commission

raised the following concerns:

1. There is no formal agreement among participants of the Pool.

2. There is no borrowing or lending limits pla~ed on any of the Pool participants.

3. DLH’s ability to borrow money from the Pool through the Agent DQE Capital.

4. Capital arbitrage between regulated and unregulated entities.

5. Duquesne Light’s risk versus benefits in participating in the Pool.

The company agreed that there is no formal agreement that is signed by the

Pool participants. DLH does have, as required by FERC and filed with FERC, a written

document that specifies the duties of the administrator and the participants. Duquesne

Light also notes that each participant in the Pool has signed the ASA and that this

agreement covers the provision of services provided by one affiliate to another. The

company reiterates that each participant is aware of the operating procedures provided by

the Cash Pool operating document.

In reviewing the Code, 66 Pa. C.S. §2102(a) states in part that:

If such contract is oral, a complete statement of the terms and conditions

thereof shall be filed with the commission and subject to its approval.

Additionally, 66 Pa. C.S. §§2102(b) states in part that:

It shall be the duty of every public utility to file with the commission a

verified copy of any such contract or arrangement, or a verified summary as described in

subsection (a) of any unwritten contract or arrangement.
5
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The Commission has determined that the Pool operating document that

Duquesne Light filed with their application adequately describes the operation of the

Pool. Therefore, the Commission will not require that a formalized signed contract for

Duquesne Light to participate in the Pool.

Unlike other cash pools that the Commission has reviewed, the DLH Pool

does not allow its Pool participants to borrow from the Pool nor does it have borrowing

or contribution limits for individual participants. As noted above, DQE Capital, acting as

the Agent, is the only Pool participant that may borrow from the Pool and its borrowing

is only limited by the amount that is contributed into the Pool. In other intra-system

money pool arrangements2, pool participants may borrow from the pool and the pool

administrator is prohibited from borrowing from the pool. Under this scenario, the pool

administrator may contribute money to the pool whenever borrowings from the

participants exceed contributions. This would be done by the pool administrator having

access to externally available credit sources.

DLH’s borrowing arrangement is dissimilar to what has been seen recently

by the Commission in other castfpool arrangements. Our concern is that DLH borrowing

through the Agent from the Pool lacks transparency in how these funds are being used

and which entities, through DLH, may be borrowing money. Along with this lack of

transparency, it may be that the regulated entity is helping to fund DLH’s non-regulated

operations. As Sharon Bonelli of Fitch Ratings notes "Cost benefits of pools reflect cost

of capital arbitrage between regulated and unregulated subsidiaries; or simply put, money

pools may provide an affiliate cross-subsidy."

2 For example, see the Secretarial Letter regarding the First Energy Pennsylvania Utilities intra-system money poll at

docket no. G-00020956.
6

Attachment II-D-8g 
Page 7 of 22



There are a number of ring-fencing strategies suggested by Fitch that may

help to insulate the public utility from the risks of its affiliates and parents when

participating in a money pool arrangement. These are:

¯ Separate pools for regulated and unregulated subsidiaries
¯ Prohibit parent from borrowing from the pool, but permit the parent to lend to

subsidiaries via the pool
¯ Restrict borrowing of unregulated subsidiary to the amount invested in the pool
¯ Restrict borrowings to a level commensurate with internal cash flow capability
¯ Require an annual ’clean down’ period, where each participant has no outstanding

borrowings from the pool for two consecutive weeks
¯ Prohibit funding of the pool with proceeds of external borrowings such as credit

facilities and commercial paper

The Duquesne Pool tends not to follow these guidelines:

¯ The Duquesne cash pool mixes both regulated and unregulated subsidiaries.
Duquesne Light would be the only regulated sub of DLH.

¯ DLH, the Parent Company, through DQE Capital, is the only entity borrowing
from the pool. (In other money pools such as the one approved for the First
Energy Utilities, the Agent could lend to the pool but could not borrow.)

¯ There appears not to be any limits on external borrowing funding the Pool. In
fact, sources for cash to the pool includes: "external borrowings against lines of
credit."

DLH counters some of these concerns by stating that Duquesne Light is the

only regulated affiliate of DLH and that Duquesne Light does not borrow money to

deposit in the Pool. Money borrowed by DLH from the Agent is charged interest at the

same rate that the company would be charged for using its current revolving credit

arrangement. Therefore, the money being borrowed by DLH is not at an interest rate

lower than DLH could obtain from other external short term borrowing facilities. For

these reasons, the company concludes that there is no cost of capital arbitrage taking

place between regulated and unregulated DLH entities.

7
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DLH also states that there is total transparency on how the cash is being

used because borrowings can. only be done by the Agent to DLH. They go on to explain

that each DLH affiliates’ funding requirements is established each year by the Board of

Directors. If Duquesne Light requires cash in excess of its cash pool balance, it can

access the capital markets, borrow under bank facilities or request equity from DLH.

Since Pool participants other than Duquesne Light do not have access to the credit

markets or bank facilities, they must request cash from DLH if their cash needs exceed

their respective cash balances. These advances would be funded by DLH first from

available cash on hand, second from available Pool funds and third from bank credit or

capital markets.

DLH opines that having their subsidiaries borrow from them rather than

directly from the Pool poses less default risk to Pool participants. Since Pool participants

cannot borrow directly from the Pool, the other Pool participants are not at risk should the

borrowing affiliate be unable to meet its financial obligations. Having DLH, who has

access to lines of credit and the capital markets, assume the default risk makes

contributing to the Pool less risky. In this way, Duquesne Light is not exposed to risk

from the smaller unregulated companies that participate in the Pool.

In addition to having minimal risk in participating in the Pool, DLH states

that Duquesne Light receives cost benefits by participating in the Pool. Administrative

cost benefits are achieved by not having to maintain separate brokerage accounts, lower

bank settlement costs through book entry with affiliates, reduced transaction costs and

lower bank services fees. Also, the additional interest paid by DLH on money bo,rrowed
from the Agent is used to cover the administrative costs of the Pool.

Our analysis and conclusions differ somewhat from those provided by

DLH. However, the Commission agrees that the Pool provides a cost benefit, and funds

8
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contributed to the Pool by Duquesne Light are not being used to subsidize its unregulated

affiliates. The Commission also concludes that the use of borrowed funds by DLH lacks

transparency, and these borrowed funds may be used to support its non-regulated

affiliates.

In analyzing the Pool data from April 2005 through September 2005, the

data shows that Duquesne Light was always a net contributor to the Pool and tended to be

the largest contributor to the Pool. DQE Capital Corporation was always a borrower

from the Pool and tended to borrow an amount that exceeded Duquesne Light’s

contributions. In light of this information, it is possible that capital arbitrage could be

taking place. However, it is difficult to monitor the flow of these funds because what

DLH does with funds borrowed from the Pool is not readily transparent by viewing Pool

data.

Upon further investigation, the Commission found that money being

borrowed by DLH from the Pool is being borrowed at a rate similar to its external short

term credit facility. Therefore, capital arbitrage between the regulated entity, Duquesne

Light, and the unregulated subsidiaries participating in the Pool, does not occur if

participating affiliates have similar risk profiles. That is, DLH and its unregulated

affiliates gain no short-term rate advantage by borrowing from the Pool versus borrowing

externally. Having DLH borrow internally rather than externally benefits all Pool

members by providing additional funds that are used by the Agent to pay the

administrative costs of the Pool. Had these funds been borrowed externally, benefits

would accrue to DLH’s lenders rather than internally to the DLH subsidiaries.

The Commission does agree with the assessment that the Pool

provides benefits to Duquesne Light. Cost sharing through a single Agent, DQE Capital

Corporation, helps to reduce administrative and transaction costs which in turn benefits

Duquesne Light. There appears to be no additional exposure to default risk whether a

9
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DLH affiliate borrows directly from the Pool, or indirectly, as is currently being done.

Duquesne Light exposure to an affiliates’ financial non-performance would be

comparable in either case.

Additionally, if a company is reliant upon its corporate parent as the sole

source of short-term financing, the company is exposed to the liquidity risk of its parent.

Having access to its own bank credit facilities, Duquesne Light is not dependent upon

DLH as its sole source of short-term financing. This minimizes any short-term liquidity

risk exposure of Duquesne Light should DLH or one of its unregulated affiliates

experience liquidity problems.

DLH affiliates are involved in the purchase of electricity and are therefore

subject to a great deal of financial risk due to price volatility in these markets. Since

funds from the Pool may be lent to these affiliates through DLH, the Commission is

obliged to monitor the financial health of these affiliates and will request quarterly

financial reporting to monitor the financial health of the DLH affiliates involved in the

purchase and supply of electricity.

Lastly, the Commission concludes that there is no additional exposure to

default risk for Duquesne Light to participate in the Pool because, in general, Duquesne

Light’s overall operations and structure are not ring-fenced from DLH. Since minimal

structural separation exists between Duquesne Light and DLH, Duquesne Light’s

participation in the Pool will not increase the risk to the utility. As noted by Standard &

Poor’ s in their summary of Duquesne Light: "The ratings on electric utility Duquesne

Light Co. reflect the consolidated credit profile of its parent, Duquesne Light Holdings

Inc., and DLH’s remaining riskier competitive businesses."

10
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In summary, the Commission finds that:

¯ Pool participation by Duquesne Light provides some cost benefits and

operating efficiencies to the company;

¯ Internal controls are in place so that funds borrowed by DLH are not being

used to provide capital arbitrage between regulated and unregulated

subsidiaries;

¯ Borrowing by DLH from the Pool does not provide adequate transparency

in regards to the use of Pool funds.

Therefore, the Commission will approve Duquesne Light’s participation in

the Pool. However, we caution the company that in continuing its participation in the

.Pool, Duquesne Light and DLH and its unregulated affiliates must continue to follow the

current guidelines presented in the body of this order. The Commission emphasizes that:

1) Duquesne Light must not provide funding to the Pool with extemally borrowed funds;

2) DLH must continue to pay its external rate of interest on monies borrowed from the

pool; and, 3) Duquesne Light should abide by all the guidelines as required by the DQE

Capital Corporation Cash Pool operating agreement. Should the DQE Capital

Corporation Cash Pool operating "agreement change, Duquesne Light should notify the

Commission of any change prior to implementing that change.

Additionally, as noted above, the use of the funds being borrowed by DLH

is not readily transparent. Because of this lack of transparency, the Commission requests

that on a quarterly basis DLH provide a summary detailing the use of borrowed funds.

The Commission has examined the Cash Pool arrangement and has

determined that it appears to be reasonable and consistent with the public interest under

Section 2102(b) of the Public Utility Code; however, approval of the Cash Pool

11
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arrangement does not preclude the Commission from investigating during any formal

proceeding the reasonableness of any charges under this arrangement; THEREFORE,

IT IS ORDERED:

1. That the Affiliated Interest Agreement among Duquesne Light Company,

Duquesne Light Holdings and its affiliates be, and hereby is, approved consistent with this

Opinion and Order.

2. That acceptance does not preclude the Commission from investigating

during any formal proceeding the reasonableness of any charges under the Agreement.

3. That Duquesne Light Company file with the Commission and provide to

the Bureau of Fixed Utility Services a quarterly report that details the use of borrowed

funds by Duquesne Light Holdings from the Cash Pool. Reports will be due 60 days

following the end of each quarter beginning with the quarter ended December 31, 2006.

4. That Duquesne Light Company file with the Commission and provide to

the Bureau of Fixed Utility Services quarterly financial reports including income

statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement of the energy supply affiliates of

Duquesne Light Holdings. Reports will be due 60 days following the end of each quarter

beginning with the quarter ended December 31, 2006.

12
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5. That the case be marked closed.

BY THE COMMISSION,

James J. McNulty
Secretary

(SEAL)

ORDER ADOPTED: November 9, 2006
ORDER ENTERED:

NOV 0 9 2008
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~/~)j 411 Seventh Avenue Tel 412-393-3662
8th Floor Fax 412-393-5602

Duouesne_ Light Pittsburgh, PA 15219 rherskovitz@duqlight.com

Our Energy... Your Power

Richard S. Herskovitz
Assistant General Counsel

October 7, 2005

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

James J. McNulty, Secretary
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Commonwealth Keystone Building, 2nd Floor
400 North Street
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Re: Application of Duquesne Light Company
For Approval of Affiliated Interest Arrangement
Docket No.

Dear Secretary McNulty:

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne") are the
original and three (3) copies of an Application for Approval Nunc Pro Tune of an
Affiliated Interest Arrangement between Duquesne and its affiliates. Specifically, this
Application, filed pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S. §2102 of the Public Utility Code, requests
Commission approval of Duquesne’s participation in a cash pool arrangement among its
affiliates.

Please date stamp the fourth copy of this Application enclosed, and kindly retum
it to me in the self-addressed stamped envelope for my file.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

Richard S.

Enclosures
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BEFORE THE
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

Application of Duquesne Light :
Company for approval of an :
Affiliated Interest Arrangement : Docket No.
Between Duquesne Light Company:
And Affiliated Companies :
(Cash Pool Arrangement) :

Affiliated Interest Application
(66 Pa. C. S. Section 2102)

Duquesne Light Company ("Duquesne") requests approval Nunc Pro Tunc,
pursuant to Section 2102 of the Public Utility Code ("Code"), 66 Pa. C. S. §2102, of its
participation in a cash pool arrangement among its affiliates, and sets forth the following
in support thereof:

1. The name and address of the Applicant is:

Duquesne Light Company
411 Seventh Avenue
.Pittsburgh, PA 15219

2. The name and address of the Applicant’s attorney are:

Richard S. Herskovitz
Assistant General Counsel
411 Seventh Avenue, Mail Drop 8-2
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
Phone: 412-393-3662
Fax: 412-393-5602
E-mail: rherskovitz@duqlight.com

3. Duquesne is a duly incorporated Pennsylvania public utility engaged in the

distribution of electric service to the public, primarily within Allegheny and Beaver

Counties, Pennsylvania, in an area of approximately 800 square miles. Duquesne’s

corporate headquarters is located at 411 Seventh Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15219.
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4. Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. ("DLH"), formerly known as DQE, Inc.

the parent company of Duquesne, established a Cash Pool ("Pool") in November, 1997.

The Pool was established as a mechanism to concentrate excess funds and combine the

cash of DLH and its subsidiaries to invest in short-term investments not previously

available to Pool participants. The Pool is a more efficient method of managing the funds

of the subsidiaries and will result in higher returns for investing members. A complete

description of the operation of the Pool is attached as Exhibit A.

5. Members of the Pool are DLH and its wholly owned, direct or indirect,

subsidiaries. Currently, DQE Capital Corporation, another subsidiary of DLH, acts as

Agent for the members and administers the Pool. Duquesne became a member of the

Pool in July, 2000.

6. In the Public Utility Commission’s most recent Management Audit of

Duquesne (field work commencing in August, 2004 and ending in March, 2005), the

Auditors investigated whether Duquesne’s participation in the Pool had been approved by

the Commission under the affiliated interest provisions of the Code. Duquesne

contended that its participation in the Pool was authorized by the Company’s

Administrative Services Agreements ("ASA"), which was previously approved by the

Commission. Although a final report of the audit has n~t yet been issued, the Auditors

have indicated that, in their opinion, the ASA did not contain such an authorization.

7. Although Duquesne disputed the Auditors’ conclusion, the Company has

agreed to file for approval of its membership and participation in the Pool under the

affiliate provisions of the Code.’

’ Exhibit A has been revised since the conclusion of the Management Audit only to reflect the current name
of the Cash Pool and to indicate that DLH or one of its subsidiaries will act as agent for the participants and
will administer the Pool. DQE Capital Corporation is the current Agent.

2
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8. Membership and participation by Duquesne in the Pool is reasonable and in

the public interest because it enhances investment returns and reduces the number and

costs of investment transactions.

WHEREFORE, Duquesne respectfully requests the Commission to approve

Duquesne’s membership and participation in the subject Cash Pool arrangement,

retroactive to July, 2000.

Duquesne Light Company t

Dated:October7,2005 By: ~~p~ ~1~.

S n"    "c President and
Chief Financial Officer
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AFFIDAVIT

I, Mark E. Kaplan, being duly sworn (affirmed) according to law, depose and say

that I am authorized to make this affidavit on behalf of Duquesne Light Company, being

the holder of the office of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer with that

Company, and that the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of my

knowledge, information and belief, and the Company expects to be able to prove the

same at any hearing hereof.

Sworn and subscribed before me this ~ day of ~c.~/_.~e r- , 2005.

eOIVI.MONWI~ALTH OF PENNSYLVKNIA
Notarial Seal

M*ry Jane Hammer, Not~ Public
City ot" Pi~burgh, Allegheny Count~
My Commission Expires Oct. 6. 2007

Member. Pennsylvania A~ociallon of Notaries

4
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Exhibit A

Duquesne Light Holdings
CASH POOL

The Duquesne Light Holdings ("Holdings") Cash Pool ("Pool") is a mechanism

to concentrate excess funds and combine the cash of Holdings and its subsidiaries to

invest in short-term investments not previously available to Pool participants. The Pool is

a more efficient method of managing the funds of the subsidiaries and will result in

higher returns for participants.

Participants of the Pool include Holdings and its wholly owned, direct or indirect,

subsidiaries. Holdings or one of its subsidiaries will act as Agent ("Agent") for the

participants and will administer the Pool. DQE Capital Corporation is currently the

Agent.

The cash position of the Pool participants will be determined by the Agent on a

daily basis. The cash position of each participant will be reported on a regular basis by

the Agent.

Each Pool participant will provide for the funding of its cash requirements

through~sources currently available. These sources include, but are not limited to, normal

operating receipts, external borrowings against established lines of credit, sales of

commercial paper, etc. or contributions by Holdings. However, the Agent is permitted to

borrow from the Pool to facilitate intercompany borrowing arrangements and operating

requirements. Due to the timing of receipt of funds and disbursement thereof, any excess

cash will become part of, and will be invested through the Pool.
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When cash is available, it will be invested in the approved investments shown

below. The approved investments are consistent with the Duquesne Light Holdings Short

Term Investment Policy as in effect at the time to provide a high degree of safety,

liquidity and, to a lesser extent, yield. The interest income resulting from the investments

will be accrued and allocated to the participants in the Pool on a daily basis. Interest will

be paid on the fifth day of the month following the monthly earnings period.

The following investments are permissible:

1) Direct or indirect obligations of the United States of America
2) Repurchase Agreements, Loan Participations, Commercial Paper, Certificates

of Deposit, and Bankers Acceptances
3) Euro Time Deposits
4) Tax Exempt Notes, Commercial Paper or Bonds
5) Auction Rate Preferred Stock
6) Money Market Funds

Specific characteristics as to credit quality, maturities and investment limits are

outlined in Duquesne Light Holdings Short Term Investment Policy and should be

referred to when investing the Pool’s cash.

The XRT Treasury Workstation software (XRT TWS), or its successor, will be

used to account for the Pool transactions and to calculate and allocate internal and

external expense/income.

A copy of the activity detail report reflecting transactions, balances and expense/income

is attached.

Direct input to be provided by each of the participants is:

(1) Anticipated deposits for the current day;
(2) Wire transfers (outbound and inbound) for the current day;
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(3) Five (5) week cash forecast;
(4) Four (4) days notice for investments, acquisitions or other

expenditures of a capital nature.

The Agent will provide the daily investment rate. The rate will be

the composite external investment rate earned on such investments and will be used as

the earnings rate within the Pool.

The software will calculate the daily balances for each participant as well as

funds contributed and withdrawn. The interest accrual calculation for

each participant’s transactions is calculated as follows:

Day’s balance x interest rate / 360 days = daily accrual

ATTACHMENTS:

(A) Participant Bank Account Flowchart
(B) Participant Inter-company Activity Detail Report
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Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 

                
 
 
Q.9. Prepare a detailed schedule for the test year showing types of social and service 

organization memberships paid for, the cost thereof, the accounting treatment and 
whether included in claimed test year expenses. 

 
A.9. Attachment II-D-9 presents the social and service organization memberships to be 

paid for in the test years.  Memberships paid for an annual period are accrued as 
prepaid expenses and amortized over the life of the membership period.  Those 
memberships not included in claimed test year expenses are detailed on 
attachment II-D-9.  
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Duquesne Light Company

Social and Services Memberships

For the Period

12 Months 12 Months 

Ending 12/31/2021 Ending 12/31/2022

Edison Electric Institute 286$                               295$                               

Gartner 286                                 289                                 

Energy Association of Pennsylvania 80                                   82                                   

Electric Power Research Institute 72                                   74                                   
Woods Mackenzie 69                                   73                                   
Distribution Operations and Planning 65                                   65                                   

SNL Financial Services 50                                   52                                   

North American Transmission Forum 46                                   46                                   

National Cyber Forensics Training Alliance 30                                   30                                   

Sustainability Industry Memberships 30                                   30                                   

Western Energy Insititute 29                                   29                                   

Bloomberg Finance 26                                   26                                   

Electricity Industry Center 25                                   25                                   

Conference Board Membership 15                                   15                                   

Distributed Energy Financial Group 15                                   15                                   

Chartwell 13                                   13                                   

PA Business Roundtable 12                                   12                                   

PA Chamber of Business & Industry 12                                   12                                   

Itron 12                                   12                                   

Capital IQ 11                                   11                                   

Smart Grid 10                                   10                                   

Smart Electric Power Alliance 10                                   10                                   

Utility Solid Waste Activities Group 10                                   10                                   

Restore Program 10                                   10                                   

Tristate Infrastructure Council 8                                     8                                     

Spare Transformer Equipment Program 8                                     8                                     

PICPA 7                                     7                                     

Pittsburgh Technology Council 5                                     5                                     

Riversweep Corporate Sponsorship 5                                     5                                     

All Other 76                                   76                                   

Total Social and Services Memberships 1,330$                            1,354$                            

Social and Services Memberships Excluded in Claimed Test Year Expenses

Ballast Research 125                                 125                                 

PA Chamber of Business & Industry 5                                     5                                     

PA Business Roundtable 3                                     3                                     

Below the Line Expenses Recorded Above 133$                               133$                               

1,196$                            1,220$                            

(in thousands)

Total Social and Services Memberships included in 

claimed test year expenses
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Jaime A. Bachota 

 
 

Q.10.   Provide the following payroll and employee benefit data – regular and overtime – 
separately for the test year and the 12-month period immediately prior to the test 

year: 
a. The average and year-end number of employees and the unadjusted annual 

payroll expense and employee benefit expense associated with union 
personnel. 

b. The average and year-end number of employees and the unadjusted annual 
payroll expense and employee benefit expense associated with nonunion 
personnel. 

c. The average and year-end number of employees and the unadjusted annual 

payroll expense and employee benefit expense associated with management 
employees, if different than b. 

d. A summary of the wage rate, salary and employee benefit changes granted or 
to be granted during the year. 

e. The claimed test year payroll expense and employee benefit expense. 
f. The percentage of payroll expense and employee benefit expense applicable to 

operation and maintenance expenses and the basis thereof. 
 

 
 
A.10.   Attachment DFR-II-D-10 provides the Company’s requested data.  
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1/2020 - 12/2020 1/2021 - 12/2021 1/2022 - 12/2022
($ 000's) ($ 000's) ($ 000's)

a. Union Personnel
Average Number of Employees 820                        833                            818                            
Year-End Number of Employees 821                        833                            817                            

Payroll Costs 
Normal 75,457$                 78,766$                     84,881$                     
Overtime 29,447$                 22,825$                     22,456$                     

Benefit Costs 26,917$                 26,220$                     27,112$                     

b. Non-Union Personnel
Average Number of Employees 753                        805 820
Year-End Number of Employees 763                        819 825

Payroll Costs 
Normal 92,183$                 98,511$                     105,257$                   
Overtime 4,400$                   3,411$                       3,356$                       

Benefit Costs 28,949$                 28,193$                     29,118$                     

Note:  

c. Same as b.

d. Wage Rate Changes
Union 

Rate 3.0% 3.0% 2.75%
Annualized Impact 2,264$                   2,363$                       2,334$                       

Note:

Non-Union 
Rate 3.0% 3.0% 2.75%
Annualized Impact 2,765$                   2,955$                       2,895$                       

Benefit Changes

Note: Benefits remain unchanged, other than the cost of providing them to employees.

e. Claimed for Test Year (excluding any pro-forma adjustments)
Payroll Expense 97,507$                 103,866$                   105,860$                   
Benefit Expense 22,813$                 28,037$                     32,470$                     

Note:

f. Percent applicable to O&M
Payroll Expense 48.4% 51.0% 49.0%
Benefit Expense 40.8% 51.5% 57.7%

Note: The charge to expense is based on activities performed or expected to be performed during the applicable years.

Union wage rate increases are effective October 1st of each year.  The union contract expires 9/30/2023 and wage 
rate increases have been negotiated as of the date of this filing for 2021. 

Benefit costs were allocated based on the normal wage costs because costs are basically the same for both union and 
non-union personnel.

Historical and future year benefits  for union personnel include $7,241, $4,909 and $4,014 attributable to pension 
expenses respectively.

Historical and future year benefits  for non-union personnel include $7,788, $5,279 and $4,311 attributable to pension 
expenses respectively.

Historical and future years benefit expense includes $5,000, $18,500 and $5,000 attributable to pension expense 
respectively.
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Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
 
Q.11.  Describe costs relative to leasing equipment, including computer rentals, and 

office space, including terms and conditions of the leases. State method for 
calculating monthly or annual payments. 

 
 
A.11. Attachment II-D-11 provides the costs, terms and conditions of Duquesne Light’s 

major leasing agreements as of December 31, 2020.    



Duquesne Light Company

Annual Leasing Costs

(Thousands of dollars)

Attachment II-D-11
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Item Leased Term

Expense for 12 

Months Ending 

12/31/2020

Method of 

Calculating 

Payment

411 7th Ave (a)

New Manchester (b)

Expedient Data Center lease (b)

Copiers (b)

Harrisburg Office Space (b)

City of Pittsburgh Land for Substation (Oakland) (b)

Mailfinance Preble Avenue (b)

(a)

(b)

Lessor

411 Seventh Ave.  Associates, L.P.

Buncher Associates

Monthly payment set in original lease.

Rent agreement contains planned escalation of square footage charge; however, rent expense is recognized on a levelized basis. 

ComDoc

Associated Pennsylvania Constructors



DFR II-D-12 
Page 1 of 1 

Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
Q.12. Submit a statement of past and anticipated changes, since the previous rate case, 

in major accounting procedures, explain any differences between the basis or 
procedure used in allocations of revenues, expenses, depreciation and taxes in the 
current rate case and that used in the prior rate cases, and list all internal and 
independent audit reports for the most recent 2 year period. 

 
A.12. Attachment II-D-12a provides a list of major accounting changes since Duquesne 

Light Company’s last base rate case.  Attachment II-D-12b provides a list of 
internal audits performed for Duquesne Light Company in 2019 and 2020.  
Attachment II-D-12c provides a list of third-party audits performed for Duquesne 
Light Company in 2019 and 2020.  
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Duquesne Light Company 
Accounting Changes Since Duquesne Light Company’s  

Last Base Rate Case 
 
 

2018: 
 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” 
requiring entities to recognize revenue by applying a five-step model in accordance with the core 
principle to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects 
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.  
The Company adopted this standard as of January 1, 2018 utilizing the full retrospective adoption 
method.  Transition to the new revenue standard did not result in any material adjustments to historical 
balances and the Company expects the adoption of the new standard to have an immaterial impact to 
results of operations on an ongoing basis.  In accordance with the new provisions of this standard, the 
Company has included enhanced quantitative and qualitative disclosures. 

   
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, “Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted 

Cash,” which requires the inclusion of restricted cash within total cash and cash equivalents when 
reconciling the beginning and ending period cash balances in the consolidated statements of cash 
flows.  Transfers between cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are no longer presented as 
cash flow activity.  The Company retroactively adopted this standard as of January 1, 2018.  The 
implementation of this ASU had no retroactive impact to cash flows from operating, investing or 
financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2017.   

 
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, “Retirement Benefits: Improving the 

Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost,” which 
requires the service cost component of net periodic benefit cost to be disaggregated from other 
components of net periodic benefit cost and presented in the same line on the consolidated statement 
of operations as other employee compensation costs arising from services rendered during the period.  
The other components of net periodic benefit costs are required to be presented separately outside of 
operating income.  Additionally, only the service cost component is eligible for capitalization.  The 
Company adopted this standard as of January 1, 2018.  The presentation of the components of net 
periodic benefit costs on the consolidated statement of operations was applied retrospectively.  The 
guidance that limits the capitalization to the service cost component of net periodic benefit costs was 
applied prospectively.  The adoption of this standard resulted in an increase to operating income of 
$9.9 million, a decrease to investment and other income (loss) of $9.9 million and no change to net 
income on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 
2017. 

 
2019: 
 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases,” which requires lessees to 
recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for all leases, including operating leases, with a term 
greater than twelve months on the balance sheet.  The Company adopted this standard as of January 
1, 2019 utilizing the modified retrospective transition method.  As most of the Company's leases do not 
provide an implicit rate, the Company took the portfolio approach of applying its incremental borrowing 
rate based on the information available at the adoption date to calculate the present value of lease 
payments over the lease term.  The Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted 
under the transition guidance within the new standard, which allowed the Company (i) to not reassess 
whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, (ii) to not reassess the lease 
classification for any expired or existing leases and (iii) to not reassess initial direct costs for any 
existing leases.  The Company also elected the practical expedient to not evaluate land easements 
that existed or expired before the entity’s adoption of this standard and the practical expedient to not 
separate lease and non-lease components, that is, to account for lease and non-lease components in 
a contract as a single lease component for all classes of underlying assets.  Further, the Company 
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made an accounting policy election to keep leases with an initial term of twelve months or less off of 
the balance sheets.  The adoption of this standard resulted in the recognition of $34.9 million of 
operating lease right-of-use assets within other non-current assets, $5.0 million of current operating 
lease liabilities within other current liabilities and $29.9 million of operating lease liabilities within non-
current liabilities on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2018.  In accordance with the new 
provisions of this standard, the Company has included enhanced quantitative and qualitative 
disclosures in its notes to the financial statements. 

 
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, “Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects 

from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,” which allows for a reclassification from 
accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from 
the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA), eliminating any stranded tax effects associated with 
accumulated other comprehensive income.  The Company adopted this standard as of January 1, 
2019 and elected to present the change in the period of adoption.  As a result, the Company 
recognized a $0.1 million cumulative effect adjustment for stranded tax effects from accumulated other 
comprehensive income to retained deficit.   

 
2020: 
 

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-14, “Compensation—Retirement Benefits—
Defined Benefit Plans—General (Subtopic 715-20),” to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the 
notes to the financial statements by facilitating clear communication of the information required by 
GAAP.  The amendments modify the disclosure requirements for employers that sponsor defined 
benefit pension or other postretirement plans.  These changes will be effective for fiscal years ending 
after December 15, 2020.  The Company adopted this standard as of January 1, 2020 utilizing the 
retrospective method of adoption.   
   
 
 



Attachment II-D-12b 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Duquesne Light Company 

Internal Audit Services 
Reports Issued 

 
Date Issued                        Title 

 
 

Year 2019 
 
02/21/2019 Debt Issuance and Compliance Review 
02/25/2019 DQE Communications – Revenue Recognition and Sales Commissions  
 Review 
02/27/2019 Cash Management and Reconciliation Review 
02/27/2019 Inventory Cycle Count Review 
02/27/2019 Safety, Health and Environmental Review 
03/04/2019 Information Technology Change Management Report 
03/08/2019 Customer Billing Review 
03/08/2019 Mobile Security Review 
05/06/2019 Medical Claims Payment Process Report 
06/28/2019 Payment Processing Review 
07/22/2019 Social Media Review 
07/30/2019 Business Risk and Insurance Process Review 
07/30/2019 Purchase of Receivables Review 
09/17/2019 Accounts Payable Review 
11/22/2019 Information Security Review – Penetration Testing 
11/22/2019 Wesco Vendor Review 
11/25/2019 IT Project Management Methodology Review 
12/02/2019 Ethics Hotline and Compliance Training Process 
12/04/2019 Logical Security Report 
 
 

Year 2020 
 
02/26/2020 Corporate Contributions Review 
02/25/2020 IT Infrastructure Asset Management Process – Strategy and Governance 
02/26/2020 Physical Security Review 
03/02/2020 PJM Settlement and POLR Auction Review 
04/29/2020 Storm Plan and Mutual Assistance Review 
05/06/2020 Transportation Fuel Usage Review 
08/14/2020 Business Travel and Expense Reimbursement Review 
08/14/2020 Inventory Cycle Count Report 
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08/14/2020 Smart Meter Surcharge Review 
08/14/2020 Random Drug Testing Review 
10/30/2020 Software Licensing 
12/07/2020 Data Management – Empyrean Application 
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Duquesne Light Company 

Third-Party Audit Reports Issued 
 

List of Third-Party Financial Statement Audit Reports/On-
Going Audits 

2019 
 
Deloitte & Touche LLP  

• Independent Auditors’ Report of the Financial Statements of the DQE Holdings 
LLC and subsidiaries, Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries and 
Duquesne Light Company and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2019. 

• Independent Auditors’ Report of the Regulatory Financial Statements, included in 
FERC Form 1 of Duquesne Light Company as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. 
 

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 
• Independent Auditors’ Report of the Financial Statements of the Duquesne Light 

Holdings, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan and the Duquesne Light Company 
401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for IBEW Represented Employees as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2019. 

• Independent Auditors’ Report for the Financial Statements of the Duquesne Light 
Company Medical Benefits Plan for IBEW Represented Employees and 
Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. Medical Benefits Plan as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. 

• Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements of the Duquesne Light 
Company Defined Benefit Retirement Plan as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2019. 
 

2020 
 
Deloitte & Touche LLP  

• Independent Auditors’ Report of the Financial Statements of the DQE Holdings 
LLC and subsidiaries, Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries and 
Duquesne Light Company and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2020. 

• Independent Auditors’ Report of the Regulatory Financial Statements, included in 
FERC Form 1 of Duquesne Light Company as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. 
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Duquesne Light Company 

Third-Party Audit Reports Issued 

List of Third-Party Tax Audit Reports/On-Going Audits 

• None 
 
List of Third-Party Regulatory Audit Reports/On-Going Audits 
 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 

• Bureau of Audit’s audit of Management and Operations. (Issued on July 3, 2019) 
• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Transmission Service Charge for the twelve 

month periods ended February 28, 2016 and February 2017.  (Issued on April 16, 
2020)  

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Default Service Supply Charge for the twelve 
month periods ended January 31, 2016 and January 31, 2017.  (Issued on April 
16, 2020)  

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Universal Service Charge for the twelve month 
periods ended October 31, 2015 and October 31, 2016.  (Issued on April 16, 
2020) 

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Smart Meter Charge for the twelve month 
periods ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016.  (Issued on March 12, 2020) 

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Surcharge 
for the twelve month period ended May 31, 2015 and the ten month period ended 
March 31, 2016.  (Issued on March 26, 2020) 
 

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Transmission Service Charge for the twelve 
month periods ended February 28, 2018, February 28, 2019 and February 29, 
2020 (Audit on-going) 

• Bureau of Audit’s Report on the Default Service Supply Charge for the twelve 
month periods ended January 31, 2018, January 31, 2019 and January 31, 2020 
(Audit on-going) 
 

North American Electric Reliability Corporation via ReliabilityFirst Corporation 
• None 
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Sponsor:  Jaime A. Bachota 
 

 
 
Q.13.  Regardless of whether a claim for negative or positive net salvage is made, attach an 

exhibit showing gross salvage, cost of removal, third party reimbursements, if any, and 
net salvage for the test year and 4 previous years. 

 
A.13. Attachment II-D-13 provides Duquesne Light Company’s claimed negative net salvage 

provision. 
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12 Months Ending
Cost of 

Removal Gross Salvage
Cost of Gross 

Negative

December 31, 2018 11,435$           (5,676)$          5,759$             
December 31, 2019 13,476             (4,011)            9,465               
December 31, 2020 13,670             (3,830)            9,840               
December 31, 2021 17,087             (7,430)            9,657               
December 31, 2022 15,174             (9,614)            5,560               

Total for 5-year period ending December 31, 2022 70,842$           (30,561)$        40,281$           

Five-year average 8,056$             

Negative Net Salvage Claim 8,056$             

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Negative Net Salvage
(Thousands of Dollars)
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       Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 

 
Q.14. State the amount of debt interest utilized for test year income tax calculations, 

including the amount so utilized which has been allocated from the debt interest 
of an affiliate, and provide details of debt interest and allocation computations. 

 
A.14.  Duquesne Light Company does not utilize any debt interest, which has been 

allocated from the debt interest of an affiliate, in the computation of taxable 
income.  In determining the interest expense deduction to be used in the income 
tax calculations for the test year, Duquesne Light has used the interest 
synchronization method that has been adopted by the Commission.  The 
calculation of interest utilized for the income tax calculations is set forth on 
Schedule D-18 in DLC Exhibits 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Exhibit 3 
(Future Test Year) and Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
Q.15 Provide a schedule for the test year of Federal and Pennsylvania taxes other than 
income taxes, per books, pro forma at present rates, and pro forma at proposed rates, 
including the following categories: 

a) Social security 
b) Unemployment 
c) Capital stock 
d) Public utility 
e) PUC assessment 
f) Other property taxes 
g) Any other appropriate categories 

 
 
A.15. DFR II-D-15 Attachment provides a schedule of taxes other than income. 
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[1] [2] [3] [4]

T&D D only D only
Total Pro forma Pro forma Pro forma

Line Amount per at present at Present at Proposed

No Description Budget (1) Rates (1) Rates (2) Rates (3)

1 Social Security 6,995$               7,322$             6,051$              6,051$               
2 Federal Unemployment Tax 60                      63                    52                     52                      
3 State Unemployment Tax 364                    381                  315                   315                    
4 Public Utility 972                    972                  753                   753                    
5 Other Property Taxes 635                    635                  492                   492                    
6 Gross Receipts 52,175               49,501             27,326              30,599               
7 Other   650                    680                  562                   562                    
8 Totals 61,849$             59,554$           35,551$            38,824$             

Gross Receipts Proposd 52,553$           30,599$            

(1) - DLC Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) D-20, column 5
(2) - Jurisdictional Separation Study Exhibit No 6
(3) - DLC Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) D-1

Duquesne Light Company
Schedule of taxes other than income

Future Test Year Ended December 31, 2021
($ in Thousands)
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[1] [2] [3] [4]

T&D D only D only
Total Pro forma Pro forma Pro forma

Line Amount per at present at Present at Proposed

No Description Budget (1) Rates (1) Rates (2) Rates (3)

1 Social Security 7,066$               7,235$             5,979$              5,979$               
2 Federal Unemployment Tax 61                      63                    52                     52                      
3 State Unemployment Tax 368                    377                  312                   312                    
4 Public Utility 999                    999                  769                   769                    
5 Other Property Taxes 665                    665                  512                   512                    
6 Gross Receipts 54,775               50,278             32,924              37,918               
7 Other   655                    671                  554                   554                    
8 Totals 64,588$             60,288$           41,102$            46,096$             

Gross Receipts Proposd 54,769$           37,918$            

(1) - DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year) D-20, column 5
(2) - Jurisdictional Separation Study Exhibit No 6
(3) - DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year) D-1

Duquesne Light Company
Schedule of taxes other than income

Fully Projected Future Test Year Ended December 31, 2022
($ in Thousands)
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       Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
Q.16. Submit a schedule showing the adjustments from taxable net income per books to 

taxable net income pro forma under existing rates and pro forma under proposed 
rates, together with an explanation of all normalizing adjustments.  Submit 
detailed calculations supporting taxable income before State and Federal income 
taxes where the income tax is subject to allocation due to operations in another 
state or due to operation of other taxable utility or non-utility business, or by 
operating divisions or areas. 

 
A.16. Detailed calculations supporting taxable income of Duquesne Light Company are 

shown on Schedule D-18 in DLC Exhibits 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), 
Exhibit 3 (Future Test Year) and Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year). 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
 
Q.17 Submit a schedule showing for the last 5 years the income tax refunds, plus interest—net 

of taxes, received from the Federal government due to prior years’ claims.  
 
 
A.17 The consolidated group has not received any federal income tax refunds for taxes paid 

during the prior 5 years. See DFR II-D-17 – Attachment for a schedule of tax refund 
received in 2017 associated with the tax year ending December 31, 2007. 
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DQE HOLDINGS LLC
IRS REFUND RECEIVED
PRIOR YEAR CLAIMS

Tax Year Year 
Ending Received Tax Interest Total

12/31/2007 2017 5,787,281       372,014          6,159,295        [1]

[1] Federal income tax paid in 2007 refunded due to 2009 NOL carryback claim.
No other income tax refunds received from the Federal government in the 
last 5 years.
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
Q.18 Furnish a breakdown of major items comprising prepaid and deferred income tax 

charges and other deferred income tax credits, reserves and associated reversals 
on liberalized depreciation. 

 
A.18 DFR II-D-18 - Attachment provides a breakdown of the major items comprising 

prepaid and deferred income tax charges and other deferred income tax credits as 
reflected on the Company’s balance sheet. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Duquesne Light Company DFR II-D-18 - Attachment
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes

HTY FTY FPFTY
Line # FERC Account 190 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022

1 Accrued Misc. Reserves Total 4,386,898 4,386,898 4,386,898
2 Payroll Deferral Total 2,143,558 2,143,558 2,143,558
3 Accrued Pensions Total 39,887,986 39,887,986 39,887,986
4 Accrued Sales and Use Tax Total 276,467 276,467 276,467
5 Bad Debt Reserve Amortization Total 8,578,719 8,578,719 8,578,719
6 Legal Accrual Total 293,392 293,392 293,392
7 Other Benefit Costs Total 8,412,445 8,412,445 8,412,445
8 Provision for Injuries and Damages Total 1,313,746 1,313,746 1,313,746
9 Reserve for Compensated Abscences Total 1,720,495 1,720,495 1,720,495
10 Reserve for HealthCare Total 404,489 404,489 404,489
11 Reserve for Legacy Issues Total 472,566 472,566 472,566
12 Reserve for Warwick Mine Liability Total 3,512,537 3,512,537 3,512,537
13 Vacation Pay Total 669,812 669,812 669,812
14 Deferred Credits 351,084 351,084 351,084
15 Other 4,373,275 4,373,275 4,373,275
16 Operating Lease Right of Use - Liability 7,131,904 7,131,904 7,131,904
17 FAS 109 Gross Up Total 25,425,390 20,014,908          15,983,550          
18 FAS 109 Increment Total 62,575,792 49,259,766          39,337,974          
19 Total Account 190 (Sum L1 - L16) 171,930,555 153,204,047 139,250,897

FERC Account 282
20 Normalized Property Total (679,684,837) (675,431,641)       (671,093,350)       

FERC Account 283
21 Amortization of Loss on Reaquisition Total (4,798,044) (4,798,044) (4,798,044)
22 Compensated Absences Total (1,720,495) (1,720,495) (1,720,495)
23 Partnership Investments Total (972,519) (972,519) (972,519)
24 Prepaid Pension Costs Total (74,938,529) (74,938,529) (74,938,529)
25 Operating Lease Right of Use - Assets (7,131,904) (7,131,904) (7,131,904)
26 Reg Assets Total (9,375,123) (9,375,123) (9,375,123)
27 Total Account 283 (Sum L19 - L23) (98,936,614) (98,936,614) (98,936,614)

28 Total Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (L17 + L18 + L24) (606,690,896) (621,164,208) (630,779,067)
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 

 
Q.19. Explain how the Federal corporate graduated tax rates have been reflected for rate case 

purposes. If the Pennsylvania jurisdictional utility is part of a multi-corporate system, 
explain how the tax savings are allocated to each member of the system.  

 
A.19. The Tax Cut and Jobs Act of 2017 (TCJA) reduced the corporate income tax rate from 35 

percent to 21 percent and eliminated the graduated corporate rate schedule. 
 

DQE Holdings LLC, the parent of the affiliated group, has chosen for book purposes and 
all other purposes to allocate consolidated Federal Income Tax among all companies 
based on net taxable income or loss and credits of each subsidiary on a separate return 
basis. 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
 
Q.20. Explain the treatment given to the cost of removal in the income tax calculation and the 

basis for such treatment.  
 
A.20. Duquesne Light Company adheres to the treatment provided in section 1.167(a)-11(d)(3) 

of the IRS regulations related to ADR property which provides: “The cost of dismantling, 
demolishing, or removing an asset in the process of retirement from the vintage account 
shall be treated as an expense deductible in the year paid or incurred, and such costs shall 
not be subtracted from the depreciation reserve for the account.”  This applies to ADR 
property acquired after December 31, 1970. 

 
For consistency, Duquesne Light requested and was granted permission from the IRS to 
deduct as expense all removal costs applicable to property retired after December 31, 
1971.  This accounting change applied to all property retired after December 31, 1971, 
regardless of when it was acquired or the method of depreciation used to recover the 
expenditures.  Duquesne Light has consistently followed this method of accounting on all 
income tax returns filed since 1972. 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 

Question: 
 
Q.21 Show income tax loss/gain carryovers from previous years. Show loss/gain carryovers by 

years of origin and amounts remaining by years at the beginning of the test year.  
 
A.21 Duquesne Light Company does not have any federal or state net operating loss 

carryovers. 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 

 
Q.22. State whether the company eliminates tax savings by the payment of actual 

interest on construction work in progress not in the rate base claim.  If response is 
affirmative: 

a) Set forth amount of construction claimed in this tax savings reduction, and 
explain the basis for this amount. 

b) Explain the manner in which the debt portion of this construction is 
determined for purposes of the deferral calculations. 

c) State the interest rate used to determine the tax savings reduction, and 
state whether State taxes are increased to reflect the construction interest 
elimination. 

d) Provide details of calculation to determine tax savings reduction, and state 
whether State taxes are increased to reflect the construction interest 
elimination. 

 
A.22. The Company does not. 
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
 
Q.23 Under section 1552 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C.A. §1552) and 26 CFR 

1.1552-1 (1983), if applicable, a parent company, in filing a consolidated income tax 
return for the group, must choose one of four options by which it must allocate total 
income tax liability of the group to the participating members to determine each 
member’s tax liability to the Federal government (if this interrogatory is not applicable, 
so state):  

a. State what option has been chosen by the group.  
b. Provide, in summary form, the amount of tax liability that has been allocated to 

each of the participating members in the consolidated income tax return for the 
test year and the most recent 3 years for which data is available.  

c. Provide a schedule, in summary form, of contributions, which were determined on 
the basis of separate tax return calculations, made by each of the participating 
members to the tax liability indicated in the consolidated group tax return. 
Provide total amounts of actual payments to the tax depository for the tax year, as 
computed on the basis of separate returns of members.  

d. Provide the most recent annual income tax return for the group.  
e. Provide details of the amount of the net operating losses of any member allocated 

to the income tax returns of each of the members of the consolidated group for the 
test year and the 3 most recent years for which data is available, together with a 
summary of the actual tax payments for those years.  

f. Provide details of the amount of net negative income taxes, after all tax credits are 
accounted for, of any member allocated to the income tax return of each of the 
members of the consolidated group for the test year and the 3 most recent years 
for which data is available, together with a summary of the actual tax payments 
for those years.  

 
 
A.23 Please see responses below: 
 

a. Internal Revenue Code Section 1552 provides for an allocation of consolidated 
income tax for “earnings and profits” purposes only based on the Company’s elected 
method.  DQE Holdings LLC (DQE) made no election and therefore under the default 
method contained in the IRS Treasury Regulations, the tax liability is apportioned 
among the members of the group in accordance with the ratio which that portion of 
the consolidated taxable income attributable to each member of the group having 
taxable income bears to the consolidated taxable income.  DQE has chosen for book 
purposes and all other purposes, to allocate consolidated Federal income tax among 
all companies based on net taxable income or loss and credits of each subsidiary on a 
separate return basis. 

 



b. Attachment II-D-23 details the tax liability of each of the participating member in the 
consolidated federal income tax return filed for the last 3 years in 2017, 2018, and 
2019. 

 
c. DQE is the parent company of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. (DLH), which is a 

member of the consolidated group that includes Duquesne Light Company.  DQE 
makes all necessary income tax payments to the Internal Revenue Service for the net 
tax liability that is due for the consolidated group.  DLH collects from member 
companies that have a positive federal income tax allocation and pays member 
companies that have a negative federal income tax allocation.  The amounts DLH 
receives from or pays each member company are the same amounts as detailed in 
attachment II-D-23. 

 
d. The most recent federal income tax return filed by the consolidated group is tax year 

2019.  It will be made available for review electronically or at the offices of Post & 
Schell P.C., subject to the execution of a separate confidentiality agreement. 

 
e. Attachment II-D-23 details actual payments made or that will be made to members of 

the consolidated group with a net operating loss. 
 
f. Attachment II-D-23 details the actual payments made or that will be made to 

members of the consolidated group with a net negative income tax allocation after 
credits. 



DQE Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries Attachment II-D-23
Allocation of Federal Income Taxes Page 1 of 3
Year Ended December 12/31/2017

 
 

Taxable Tax Less Net
EIN COMPANY Income @ 35% Credits Tax Due

20-5112757 DQE HOLDINGS, LLC (1,540,791)               (539,277)                  (539,277)                  
25-1598483 DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS, INC. (67,767,579)             (23,718,653)             -                             (23,718,653)             
25-0451600 DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY 5,119,608                1,791,863                1,791,863                
25-1111912 MONONGAHELA LIGHT AND POWER 800,268                    280,094                    280,094                    
51-0368321 DUQUESNE FIBER COMPANY 997,443                    349,105                    349,105                    
25-1876941 DES CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 24,520                      8,582                        8,582                        
25-1541872 DQE ENTERPRISES, INC. 52,116                      18,241                      18,241                      
25-1837251 DQE CAPITAL CORPORATION 1,558                        545                            545                            
23-2869466 DQE SYSTEMS, INC. 10,213,947              3,574,881                3,574,881                

Subtotal: Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) (52,098,910)             (18,234,619)             -                             (18,234,619)             
Consolidating Adjustments:

Charitable Contributions -                             
Dividends Received Deduction (588)                          (206)                          (206)                          
NOL Deduction -                             -                             

Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) (52,099,498)             -                             -                             -                             
AMT Tax -                             
Low income housing recapture tax -                             
Consolidated Federal Tax Liability -                             



DQE Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries Attachment II-D-23
Allocation of Federal Income Taxes Page 2 of 3
Year Ended December 12/31/2018

 
 

Taxable Tax Less Net
EIN COMPANY Income @ 21% Credits Tax Due

20-5112757 DQE HOLDINGS, LLC (2,193,600)               (460,656)                  (460,656)                  
25-1598483 DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS, INC. (79,716,895)             (16,740,548)             -                             (16,740,548)             
25-0451600 DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY 93,301,906              19,593,400              19,593,400              
25-1111912 MONONGAHELA LIGHT AND POWER -                             -                             -                             
51-0368321 DUQUESNE FIBER COMPANY -                             -                             -                             
25-1876941 DES CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. (1,715)                       (360)                          (360)                          
25-1541872 DQE ENTERPRISES, INC. 115,886                    24,336                      24,336                      
25-1837251 DQE CAPITAL CORPORATION 77,481                      16,271                      16,271                      
23-2869466 DQE SYSTEMS, INC. -                             -                             -                             

Subtotal: Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) 11,583,063              2,432,443                -                             2,432,443                
Consolidating Adjustments:

Charitable Contributions -                             
Dividends Received Deduction (210)                          
NOL Deduction (11,582,853)             (2,432,399)               (2,432,399)               

Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) -                             -                             -                             -                             
AMT Tax -                             
Low income housing recapture tax -                             
Consolidated Federal Tax Liability -                             



DQE Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries Attachment II-D-23
Allocation of Federal Income Taxes Page 3 of 3
Year Ended December 12/31/2019

 
 

Taxable Tax Less Net
EIN COMPANY Income @ 21% Credits Tax Due

20-5112757 DQE HOLDINGS, LLC (5,643,802)               (1,185,198)               (1,185,198)               
25-1598483 DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS, INC. (58,444,313)             (12,273,306)             -                             (12,273,306)             
25-0451600 DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY 153,692,805            32,275,489              32,275,489              
25-1111912 MONONGAHELA LIGHT AND POWER -                             -                             -                             
51-0368321 DUQUESNE FIBER COMPANY -                             -                             -                             
25-1876941 DES CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. -                             -                             -                             
25-1541872 DQE ENTERPRISES, INC. 142,528                    29,931                      29,931                      
25-1837251 DQE CAPITAL CORPORATION (1,160)                       (244)                          (244)                          
23-2869466 DQE SYSTEMS, INC. -                             -                             -                             
81-3028722 TEN CONNECTED SOLUTIONS, INC. (32,749)                     (6,877)                       (6,877)                       
45-4618116 THE EFFICIENCY NETWORK, INC. (2,018,778)               (423,943)                  (423,943)                  

Subtotal: Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) 87,694,531              18,415,852              -                             18,415,852              
Consolidating Adjustments:

Charitable Contributions 
Dividends Received Deduction -                             
NOL Deduction (87,694,531)             (18,415,852)             (18,415,852)             

Consolidated Taxable Income/(Loss) -                             -                             -                             -                             
AMT Tax -                             
Low income housing recapture tax -                             
Consolidated Federal Tax Liability -                             
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                         Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 

             
Q.24 Provide detailed computations by vintage year showing State and Federal deferred 

income taxes resulting from the use of accelerated tax depreciation associated 
with post-1969 public utility property, ADR rates, and accelerated tax 
depreciation associated with post-1980 public utility property under the 
Accelerated Cost Recovery System (ACRS).   

a) Reconcile and explain any differences in the base used to calculate State 
and Federal deferred income taxes. 

b) State whether tax depreciation is based on all rate base items claimed as of 
the end of the test year, and whether it is the annual tax depreciation at the 
end of the test year. 

c) Reconcile differences between the deferred tax balance, as shown as a 
reduction to rate base, and the deferred tax balance as shown on the 
balance sheet. 

 
A.24 See Attachment DFR II-D-24 – Attachment which provides detailed computations 

for the fully projected future test year ended December 31, 2022 of federal 
deferred income taxes by vintage year resulting from the use of accelerated tax 
depreciation associated with post-1980 public utility property under the 
Accelerated Cost Recovery System (ACRS), post-1969 public utility property, 
and differences in tax depreciation related to using class lives under the ADR 
system versus tax depreciation using the guideline lives in effect prior to the ADR 
system of depreciation.    

 
a) Duquesne Light Company does not provide for any state deferred income 

taxes associated with the use of accelerated tax depreciation on its 
distribution property.  The Company does provide for state deferred 
income taxes for transmission property under the FERC full normalization 
method.  

b) Tax depreciation is not based on all rate base items claimed as of the end 
of the test year.  Certain assets that are included in rate base are fully 
depreciated for tax purposes.  Additionally, there are basis differences 
between book cost and tax cost for which tax depreciation is not 
calculated.  Tax depreciation claimed is the annual tax depreciation 
projected at the end of the fully projected future test year. 

c) The reconciliation is not applicable since there are no differences between 
the deferred tax balance and the deferred tax balance as shown on the 
balance sheet. 

 
 
 



DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Deferred Income Tax Calculation
Historical Test Period Ended Decemeber 31, 2022
PowerTax Year 2022
($ in Thousands)

Deferred Type:  METHOD LIFE
Accelerated Deferred
Federal Tax S/L Using Excess Federal Income

Description Depreciation Tax Basis Depreciation Rate Taxes

Vintage 1970 and Prior
Distribution 16 0 16 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 49 837 (788) 37% (291)

Subtotal-1970 and Prior 65 837 (772) (291)

Vintage 1971
Distribution 0 0 0 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 22 (21) 36% (8)

Subtotal-1971 Vintage 0 22 (21) (8)

Vintage 1972
Distribution 0 0 0 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 6 411 (406) 37% (150)

Subtotal-1972 Vintage 6 411 (406) (150)

Vintage 1973
Distribution 0 (0) 0 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 1 81 (80) 37% (29)

Subtotal-1973 Vintage 1 80 (80) (29)

Vintage 1974
Distribution 0 0 (0) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 12 163 (151) 37% (56)

Subtotal-1974 Vintage 12 163 (151) (56)

Vintage 1975
Distribution 77 196 (120) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 24 50 (25) 36% (9)

Subtotal-1975 Vintage 101 246 (145) (9)

Vintage 1976
Distribution 0 7 (6) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 1 150 (149) 36% (54)

Subtotal-1976 Vintage 1 157 (155) (54)

Vintage 1977
Distribution 5 10 (5) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 11 0 11 2% 0
Transmission (3) (1) (2) 22% (0)

Subtotal-1977 Vintage 13 9 5 (0)

Vintage 1978
Distribution 31 43 (12) 0% 0
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Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 29 0 29 2% 1
Transmission 13 16 (4) 60% (2)

Subtotal-1978 Vintage 72 59 13 (2)

Vintage 1979
Distribution 168 0 168 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 5 0 5 2% 0
Transmission 88 1,280 (1,192) 36% (433)

Subtotal-1979 Vintage 261 1,280 (1,020) (433)

Vintage 1980
Distribution 5 3,460 (3,455) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 50 655 (605) 2% (11)
Transmission 16 1,565 (1,549) 38% (586)

Subtotal-1980 Vintage 71 5,680 (5,609) (597)

Vintage 1981
Distribution 1 400 (399) 44% (176)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 9 (9) 20% (2)
Transmission 1 236 (234) 37% (88)

Subtotal-1981 Vintage 2 644 (642) (265)

Vintage 1982
Distribution 1 947 (946) 43% (409)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 20 (20) 20% (4)
Transmission 0 103 (103) 36% (37)

Subtotal-1982 Vintage 1 1,070 (1,069) (450)

Vintage 1983
Distribution 1 547 (546) 43% (232)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 88 (88) 20% (17)
Transmission 2 25 (23) 38% (9)

Subtotal-1983 Vintage 3 660 (657) (258)

Vintage 1984
Distribution 2 480 (478) 42% (199)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 57 (57) 19% (11)
Transmission 0 74 (74) 36% (27)

Subtotal-1984 Vintage 2 611 (609) (237)

Vintage 1985
Distribution 1 584 (582) 40% (236)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 145 (145) 18% (27)
Transmission 0 101 (101) 36% (37)

Subtotal-1985 Vintage 1 829 (828) (299)

Vintage 1986
Distribution 2 724 (722) 39% (280)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 113 (113) 18% (20)
Transmission 0 122 (122) 36% (44)

Subtotal-1986 Vintage 2 960 (957) (345)

Vintage 1987
Distribution 3 417 (415) 38% (159)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 83 (83) 17% (14)
Transmission 0 205 (205) 36% (74)

Subtotal-1987 Vintage 3 705 (702) (247)

Vintage 1988
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Distribution 3 615 (612) 34% (206)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (19) 19 17% 3
Transmission 0 82 (82) 36% (30)

Subtotal-1988 Vintage 3 678 (674) (232)

Vintage 1989
Distribution 3 741 (737) 35% (259)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 147 (147) 17% (25)
Transmission 0 34 (34) 36% (12)

Subtotal-1989 Vintage 3 922 (918) (296)

Vintage 1990
Distribution 5 670 (665) 35% (234)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 156 (156) 16% (25)
Transmission 2 57 (55) 36% (20)

Subtotal-1990 Vintage 6 882 (876) (279)

Vintage 1991
Distribution 29 675 (646) 36% (230)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 89 33 56 11% 6
Transmission 68 90 (21) 36% (8)

Subtotal-1991 Vintage 186 798 (612) (232)

Vintage 1992
Distribution 35 749 (714) 35% (253)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 43 330 (287) 19% (54)
Transmission 22 337 (315) 36% (113)

Subtotal-1992 Vintage 99 1,416 (1,317) (420)

Vintage 1993
Distribution 27 528 (501) 36% (183)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission (1) 100 (100) 36% (36)

Subtotal-1993 Vintage 27 628 (601) (219)

Vintage 1994
Distribution 20 433 (414) 35% (146)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (5) 5 25% 1

Subtotal-1994 Vintage 20 428 (409) (145)

Vintage 1995
Distribution 38 406 (367) 36% (132)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 2 41 (40) 36% (14)

Subtotal-1995 Vintage 40 447 (407) (146)

Vintage 1996
Distribution 31 488 (457) 35% (159)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 173 157 16 17% 3
Transmission 23 212 (189) 35% (66)

Subtotal-1996 Vintage 226 856 (630) (223)

Vintage 1997
Distribution 11 431 (420) 34% (143)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General (9) 0 (9) 18% (2)
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Transmission 1 1 (0) 36% (0)
Subtotal-1997 Vintage 3 432 (429) (145)

Vintage 1998
Distribution 451 323 127 20% 25
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 52 66 (14) 18% (2)
Transmission (28) (38) 10 36% 3

Subtotal-1998 Vintage 474 351 123 26

Vintage 1999
Distribution 22 282 (260) 34% (88)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General (0) (1) 0 -33% (0)
Transmission (5) 74 (79) 35% (27)

Subtotal-1999 Vintage 17 356 (339) (116)

Vintage 2000
Distribution 5 426 (421) 32% (133)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 163 207 (44) 10% (5)
Transmission (4) 67 (72) 34% (24)

Subtotal-2000 Vintage 164 700 (537) (162)

Vintage 2001
Distribution 16 644 (628) 31% (197)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 508 866 (357) 15% (54)
Transmission 0 (24) 24 33% 8

Subtotal-2001 Vintage 525 1,486 (962) (243)

Vintage 2002
Distribution 546 598 (52) 34% (18)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 139 178 (39) 11% (4)
Transmission 47 29 18 19% 3

Subtotal-2002 Vintage 732 805 (73) (19)

Vintage 2003
Distribution 1,162 691 471 21% 98
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 185 247 (62) 14% (9)
Transmission 128 66 62 21% 13

Subtotal-2003 Vintage 1,475 1,004 471 103

Vintage 2004
Distribution 1,345 940 404 21% 85
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 62 79 (18) 18% (3)
Transmission 173 20 154 35% 54

Subtotal-2004 Vintage 1,580 1,039 540 135

Vintage 2005
Distribution 2,555 1,231 1,324 21% 278
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 188 356 (168) 16% (27)
Transmission 393 238 155 35% 54

Subtotal-2005 Vintage 3,136 1,825 1,311 305

Vintage 2006
Distribution 11 2,003 (1,992) 35% (697)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 1,241 2,017 (776) 15% (113)
Transmission 4 698 (694) 33% (226)

Subtotal-2006 Vintage 1,257 4,719 (3,462) (1,035)

Vintage 2007
Distribution 1,027 544 483 21% 101
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
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General 388 61 326 18% 58
Transmission 2,548 1,676 872 20% 171

Subtotal-2007 Vintage 3,963 2,281 1,682 330

Vintage 2008
Distribution 1,456 1,167 289 22% 62
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 179 321 (142) 15% (21)
Transmission 189 106 83 21% 17

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 1,824 1,593 231 58

Vintage 2009
Distribution 2,313 1,722 591 21% 122
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 126 161 (34) 18% (6)
Transmission 1,979 1,701 277 18% 49

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 4,419 3,584 834 165

Vintage 2010
Distribution 2,884 3,268 (384) 43% (164)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 166 235 (68) 13% (9)
Transmission 2,140 1,821 319 20% 64

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 5,190 5,323 (133) (109)

Vintage 2011
Distribution 308 1,432 (1,124) 34% (384)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 317 1,660 (1,343) 17% (229)
Transmission 549 1,272 (723) 35% (256)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 1,175 4,364 (3,190) (870)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 1,931 2,119 (188) 39% (74)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 320 2,271 (1,951) 17% (336)
Transmission 920 1,566 (646) 37% (237)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 3,170 5,956 (2,786) (647)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 1,929 1,722 207 25% 52
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 357 3,256 (2,899) 17% (501)
Transmission 1,592 1,349 242 21% 51

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 3,877 6,327 (2,450) (398)

Vintage 2014
Distribution 819 896 (77) 10% (8)
Smart Meters 0 21 (21) 31% (7)
General 673 3,312 (2,639) 17% (449)
Transmission 936 734 202 21% 42

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 2,428 4,964 (2,536) (422)

Vintage 2015
Distribution 971 1,063 (91) -7% 7
Smart Meters 0 10,293 (10,293) 34% (3,457)
General 221 2,343 (2,123) 17% (370)
Transmission 849 719 130 21% 27

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 2,041 14,417 (12,377) (3,793)

Vintage 2016
Distribution 1,524 1,358 166 14% 24
Smart Meters 0 8,255 (8,255) 33% (2,685)
General 891 3,743 (2,852) 17% (496)
Transmission 2,855 2,466 389 21% 82

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 5,270 15,822 (10,552) (3,075)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 3,138 3,112 25 -128% (33)
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Smart Meters 839 1,376 (537) 33% (176)
General 1,329 10,329 (9,000) 17% (1,537)
Transmission 1,224 1,114 110 20% 22

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 6,530 15,931 (9,401) (1,723)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 4,890 (4,135) 9,025 6% 544
Smart Meters 2,782 879 1,903 21% 400
General 3,198 25,447 (22,249) 10% (2,158)
Transmission 1,670 (984) 2,654 21% 557

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 12,539 21,207 (8,668) (658)

Vintage 2019
Distribution 4,819 2,013 2,807 21% 589
Smart Meters 898 206 693 21% 145
General 24,442 28,509 (4,067) 10% (427)
Transmission 1,260 488 771 21% 162

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 31,420 31,216 204 470

Vintage 2020
Distribution 5,710 2,156 3,554 21% 746
Smart Meters 1,232 167 1,064 21% 224
General 15,528 12,333 3,195 10% 335
Transmission 4,214 1,239 2,975 21% 625

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 26,684 15,896 10,788 1,930

Vintage 2021
Distribution 9,246 3,260 5,986 21% 1,257
Smart Meters 1,598 130 1,468 21% 308
General 30,817 22,842 7,975 11% 837
Transmission 4,309 1,186 3,123 21% 656

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 45,970 27,419 18,551 3,058

Vintage 2022
Distribution 3,664 1,228 2,436 21% 511
Smart Meters 999 65 934 21% 196
General 17,605 10,838 6,767 11% 711
Transmission 3,868 978 2,890 21% 607

Subtotal-2022 Vintage 26,135 13,110 13,026 2,025

Subtotals - METHOD LIFE
Distribution 53,259 43,614 9,644 -10% (931)
Smart Meters 8,347 21,392 (13,045) 39% (5,052)
General 99,485 133,651 (34,166) 15% (5,014)
Transmission 32,133 24,948 7,185 4% 268

ubtotal - Method Life 193,224 223,605 (30,381) (10,728)

Deferred Type:  POST 69 DDB/SL

Vintage 1970 and Prior
Distribution 23 2,516 (2,493) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1970 and Prior 23 2,516 (2,493) 0

Vintage 1971
Distribution 0 144 (144) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1971 Vintage 0 144 (144) 0

Vintage 1972
Distribution 0 425 (425) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1972 Vintage 0 425 (425) 0
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Vintage 1973
Distribution 0 392 (392) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1973 Vintage 0 392 (392) 0

Vintage 1974
Distribution 0 513 (513) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1974 Vintage 0 513 (513) 0

Vintage 1975
Distribution 0 547 (547) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1975 Vintage 0 547 (547) 0

Vintage 1976
Distribution 59 399 (341) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1976 Vintage 59 399 (341) 0

Vintage 1977
Distribution 0 443 (443) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1977 Vintage 0 443 (443) 0

Vintage 1978
Distribution 0 557 (557) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1978 Vintage 0 557 (557) 0

Vintage 1979
Distribution 77 468 (391) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1979 Vintage 77 468 (391) 0

Vintage 1980
Distribution 23 543 (520) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1980 Vintage 23 543 (520) 0

Subtotals - POST 69 DDB/SL
Distribution 181 6,947 (6,767) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

tal - POST 69 DDB/SL 181 6,947 (6,767) 0

Deferred Type:  LIFE VINT 1971-1977

Vintage 1971
Distribution 9 0 9 35% 3
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
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General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1971 Vintage 9 0 9 3

Vintage 1972
Distribution 15 0 15 35% 5
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1972 Vintage 15 0 15 5

Vintage 1973
Distribution 17 0 17 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1973 Vintage 17 0 17 0

Vintage 1974
Distribution 18 0 18 37% 7
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1974 Vintage 18 0 18 7

Vintage 1975
Distribution 24 0 24 35% 8
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1975 Vintage 24 0 24 8

Vintage 1976
Distribution 18 20 (1) 38% (1)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1976 Vintage 18 20 (1) (1)

Vintage 1977
Distribution 13 0 13 35% 4
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1977 Vintage 13 0 13 4

Subtotals - LIFE VINT 1971-1977
Distribution 115 20 95 29% 28
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

  LIFE VINT 1971-1977 115 20 95 28

Deferred Type:  Life Vint 1978

Vintage 1978
Distribution 15 0 15 22% 3
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

btotal - Life Vint 1978 15 0 15 3

Deferred Type:  Life Vint 1979

Vintage 1979
Distribution 25 26 (0) 37% (0)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0
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btotal - Life Vint 1979 25 26 (0) (0)

Deferred Type:  Life Vint 1980

Vintage 1980
Distribution 7 8 (1) 35% (0)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

btotal - Life Vint 1980 7 8 (1) (0)

Deferred Type:  263A 481a

Vintage 1997
Distribution 0 104 (104) 35% (36)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 1 (1) 35% (0)

Subtotal-1997 Vintage 0 104 (104) (36)

Vintage 1998
Distribution 0 99 (99) 35% (35)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1998 Vintage 0 99 (99) (35)

Vintage 1999
Distribution 0 33 (33) 35% (11)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 8 (8) 36% (3)

Subtotal-1999 Vintage 0 41 (41) (14)

Vintage 2000
Distribution 0 64 (64) 35% (23)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 9 (9) 36% (3)

Subtotal-2000 Vintage 0 74 (74) (26)

Vintage 2001
Distribution 0 82 (82) 35% (29)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (2) 2 36% 1

Subtotal-2001 Vintage 0 80 (80) (28)

Vintage 2002
Distribution 0 104 (104) 35% (36)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 3 (3) 35% (1)

Subtotal-2002 Vintage 0 107 (107) (38)

Vintage 2003
Distribution 0 117 (117) 35% (41)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 14 (14) 36% (5)

Subtotal-2003 Vintage 0 130 (130) (46)

Vintage 2004
Distribution 0 118 (118) 35% (41)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 14 (14) 35% (5)

Subtotal-2004 Vintage 0 131 (131) (46)
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Vintage 2005
Distribution 0 250 (250) 35% (88)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 40 (40) 35% (14)

Subtotal-2005 Vintage 0 290 (290) (102)

Vintage 2006
Distribution 0 284 (284) 35% (99)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 95 (95) 36% (34)

Subtotal-2006 Vintage 0 379 (379) (133)

Vintage 2007
Distribution 0 91 (91) 35% (32)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 176 (176) 36% (62)

Subtotal-2007 Vintage 0 267 (267) (94)

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 251 (251) 35% (88)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 19 (19) 36% (7)

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 271 (271) (95)

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 255 (255) 35% (89)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 176 (176) 35% (62)

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 430 (430) (152)

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 352 (352) 35% (123)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 169 (169) 35% (60)

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 522 (522) (183)

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 330 (330) 35% (115)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 170 (170) 36% (60)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 499 (499) (176)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 251 (251) 35% (88)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 148 (148) 35% (52)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 399 (399) (140)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 224 (224) 35% (79)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 125 (125) 35% (44)

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 349 (349) (123)

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 267 (267) 35% (93)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 191 (191) 35% (68)

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 458 (458) (161)
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Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 159 (159) 35% (56)
Smart Meters 0 149 (149) 35% (52)
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 65 (65) 35% (23)

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 373 (373) (131)

Subtotals -263A 481a
Distribution 0 3,434 (3,434) 35% (1,202)
Smart Meters 0 149 (149) 35% (52)
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 1,422 (1,422) 35% (504)

Subtotal - 263A 481a 0 5,005 (5,005) (1,758)

Deferred Type: 263A

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 107 (107) 35% (37)
Smart Meters 0 66 (66) 35% (23)
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 135 (135) 35% (48)

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 308 (308) (108)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 333 (333) 35% (116)
Smart Meters 0 63 (63) 35% (22)
General 0 66 (66) 18% (12)
Transmission 0 69 (69) 35% (24)

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 531 (531) (175)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 347 (347) 21% (73)
Smart Meters 0 47 (47) 21% (10)
General 0 77 (77) 10% (8)
Transmission 0 62 (62) 21% (13)

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 532 (532) (104)

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 391 (391) 21% (82)
Smart Meters 0 20 (20) 21% (4)
General 0 207 (207) 11% (22)
Transmission 0 34 (34) 21% (7)

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 652 (652) (115)

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 324 (324) 21% (68)
Smart Meters 0 14 (14) 21% (3)
General 0 47 (47) 10% (5)
Transmission 0 99 (99) 21% (21)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 484 (484) (97)

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 357 (357) 21% (75)
Smart Meters 0 9 (9) 21% (2)
General 0 66 (66) 10% (7)
Transmission 0 79 (79) 21% (17)

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 512 (512) (101)

Vintage 2022
Distribution 10,893 142 10,751 21% 2,258
Smart Meters 390 5 385 21% 81
General 498 28 470 10% 49
Transmission 5,972 75 5,896 21% 1,238

Subtotal-2022 Vintage 17,753 250 17,503 3,626

Subtotals - 263A
Distribution 10,893 2,001 8,892 20% 1,806
Smart Meters 390 223 167 10% 17
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General 498 491 7 -58% (4)
Transmission 5,972 554 5,418 20% 1,108

Subtotal - 263A 17,753 3,269 14,484 2,927

Deferred Type: AFUDC Debt

Vintage 1997
Distribution 0 8 (8) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 1 (1) 36% (0)

Subtotal-1997 Vintage 0 9 (9) (0)

Vintage 1998
Distribution 0 9 (9) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 (0) 36% (0)

Subtotal-1998 Vintage 0 9 (9) (0)

Vintage 1999
Distribution 0 18 (18) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 2 (2) 36% (1)

Subtotal-1999 Vintage 0 20 (20) (1)

Vintage 2000
Distribution 0 23 (23) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 8 (8) 36% (3)

Subtotal-2000 Vintage 0 31 (31) (3)

Vintage 2001
Distribution 0 21 (21) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 (0) 36% (0)

Subtotal-2001 Vintage 0 21 (21) (0)

Vintage 2002
Distribution 0 15 (15) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 1 (1) 36% (0)

Subtotal-2002 Vintage 0 16 (16) (0)

Vintage 2003
Distribution 0 13 (13) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 2 (2) 36% (1)

Subtotal-2003 Vintage 0 16 (16) (1)

Vintage 2004
Distribution 0 14 (14) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 1 (1) 36% (0)

Subtotal-2004 Vintage 0 15 (15) (0)

Vintage 2005
Distribution 0 30 (30) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 4 (4) 36% (1)

Subtotal-2005 Vintage 0 34 (34) (1)
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Vintage 2006
Distribution 0 15 (15) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 14 (14) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 6 (6) 36% (2)

Subtotal-2006 Vintage 0 35 (35) (3)

Vintage 2007
Distribution 0 9 (9) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 (0) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 2 (2) 36% (1)

Subtotal-2007 Vintage 0 11 (11) (1)

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 16 (16) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (0) 0 2% 0
Transmission 0 2 (2) 35% (1)

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 18 (18) (1)

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 29 (29) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 (0) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 5 (5) 35% (2)

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 35 (35) (2)

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 23 (23) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 1 (1) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 1 (1) 36% (0)

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 25 (25) (0)

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 16 (16) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 1 (1) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 16 (16) 36% (6)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 33 (33) (6)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 31 (31) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 7 (7) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 32 (32) 35% (11)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 70 (70) (11)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 18 (18) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (46) 46 2% 1
Transmission 0 (9) 9 35% 3

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 (36) 36 4

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 25 (25) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 68 (68) 2% (1)
Transmission 0 (7) 7 35% 3

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 86 (86) 1

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 35 (35) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 3 (3) 3% (0)
Transmission 0 5 (5) 35% (2)

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 43 (43) (2)
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Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 20 (20) 35% (7)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 3 (3) 18% (0)
Transmission 0 7 (7) 35% (2)

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 29 (29) (10)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 21 (21) 35% (7)
Smart Meters 0 7 (7) 35% (2)
General 0 58 (58) 18% (10)
Transmission 0 5 (5) 35% (2)

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 91 (91) (22)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 16 (16) 21% (3)
Smart Meters 0 0 (0) 21% (0)
General 0 269 (269) 11% (28)
Transmission 0 12 (12) 21% (3)

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 298 (298) (34)

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 21 (21) 21% (4)
Smart Meters 0 (0) 0 21% 0
General 0 507 (507) 11% (53)
Transmission 0 7 (7) 21% (1)

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 535 (535) (59)

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 26 (26) 21% (6)
Smart Meters 0 2 (2) 21% (0)
General 0 78 (78) 10% (8)
Transmission 0 14 (14) 21% (3)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 120 (120) (17)

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 28 (28) 21% (6)
Smart Meters 0 1 (1) 21% (0)
General 0 215 (215) 11% (23)
Transmission 0 8 (8) 21% (2)

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 251 (251) (30)

Vintage 2022
Distribution 797 10 787 21% 165
Smart Meters 28 0 27 21% 6
General 866 102 765 11% 80
Transmission 506 6 499 21% 105

Subtotal-2022 Vintage 2,197 119 2,078 356

Subtotals - AFUDC Debt
Distribution 797 512 285 46% 132
Smart Meters 28 10 18 16% 3
General 866 1,280 (414) 11% (44)
Transmission 506 131 374 18% 66

ubtotal - AFUDC Debt 2,197 1,933 264 157

Deferred Type: CAP OPEB Expense

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 84 (84) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 9 (9) 36% (3)

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 93 (93) (3)

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 53 (53) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
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General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 30 (30) 36% (10)

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 83 (83) (10)

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 59 (59) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 25 (25) 35% (9)

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 84 (84) (9)

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 61 (61) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 6 (6) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 30 (30) 36% (11)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 97 (97) (11)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 43 (43) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
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General 0 11 (11) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 21 (21) 35% (7)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 74 (74) (8)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 39 (39) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 9 (9) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 14 (14) 35% (5)

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 62 (62) (5)

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 53 (53) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 28 (28) 2% (1)
Transmission 0 14 (14) 35% (5)

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 96 (96) (6)

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 38 (38) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 7 (7) 3% (0)
Transmission 0 10 (10) 35% (4)

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 55 (55) (4)

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 24 (24) 35% (8)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 12 (12) 18% (2)
Transmission 0 15 (15) 35% (5)

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 51 (51) (16)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 7 (7) 35% (3)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 1 (1) 18% (0)
Transmission 0 1 (1) 35% (1)

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 10 (10) (3)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 6 (6) 21% (1)
Smart Meters 0 1 (1) 21% (0)
General 0 1 (1) 10% (0)
Transmission 0 1 (1) 21% (0)

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 8 (8) (2)
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Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 1 (1) 21% (0)
Smart Meters 0 0 (0) 21% (0)
General 0 0 (0) 11% (0)
Transmission 0 0 (0) 21% (0)

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 1 (1) (0)

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 5 (5) 21% (1)
Smart Meters 0 0 (0) 21% (0)
General 0 1 (1) 11% (0)
Transmission 0 1 (1) 21% (0)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 7 (7) (1)

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 9 (9) 21% (2)
Smart Meters 0 0 (0) 21% (0)
General 0 2 (2) 11% (0)
Transmission 0 2 (2) 21% (0)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 12 (12) (2)

Vintage 2022
Distribution 260 3 257 21% 54
Smart Meters 9 0 9 21% 2
General 12 1 11 10% 1
Transmission 143 2 141 21% 30

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 424 6 418 87

Subtotals - CAP OPEB Expense
Distribution 260 484 (224) -17% 39
Smart Meters 9 1 8 21% 2
General 12 80 (68) 4% (3)
Transmission 143 176 (33) 95% (31)

 - CAP OPEB Expense 424 741 (318) 6

Deferred Type: CAP OPEB Payment

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 (61) 61 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (6) 6 36% 2

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 (68) 68 2

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 (39) 39 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (22) 22 36% 8

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 (60) 60 8

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 (84) 84 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (36) 36 35% 13

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 (120) 120 13
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Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 (66) 66 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (7) 7 2% 0
Transmission 0 (32) 32 36% 11

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 (104) 104 11

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 (42) 42 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (11) 11 2% 0
Transmission 0 (20) 20 35% 7

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 (73) 73 7

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 (43) 43 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (10) 10 2% 0
Transmission 0 (16) 16 35% 6

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 (69) 69 6

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 (30) 30 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (16) 16 2% 0
Transmission 0 (8) 8 35% 3

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 (54) 54 3

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 (48) 48 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (9) 9 3% 0
Transmission 0 (13) 13 35% 4

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 (70) 70 5

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 (25) 25 35% 9
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (12) 12 18% 2
Transmission 0 (16) 16 35% 6

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 (54) 54 17

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 (60) 60 35% 21
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (12) 12 18% 2
Transmission 0 (12) 12 35% 4

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 (84) 84 27

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 (42) 42 21% 9
Smart Meters 0 (6) 6 21% 1
General 0 (9) 9 10% 1
Transmission 0 (8) 8 21% 2

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 (65) 65 13

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 (44) 44 21% 9
Smart Meters 0 (2) 2 21% 0
General 0 (23) 23 10% 2
Transmission 0 (4) 4 21% 1

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 (74) 74 13

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 (29) 29 21% 6
Smart Meters 0 (1) 1 21% 0
General 0 (4) 4 11% 0
Transmission 0 (9) 9 21% 2
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Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 (43) 43 9

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 (38) 38 21% 8
Smart Meters 0 (1) 1 21% 0
General 0 (7) 7 10% 1
Transmission 0 (9) 9 21% 2

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 (55) 55 11

Vintage 2022
Distribution (1,167) (15) (1,152) 21% (242)
Smart Meters (42) (1) (41) 21% (9)
General (53) (3) (50) 10% (5)
Transmission (640) (8) (632) 21% (133)

Subtotal-2022 Vintage (1,902) (27) (1,876) (389)

Subtotals - CAP OPEB Payment
Distribution (1,167) (666) (501) 36% (180)
Smart Meters (42) (11) (31) 21% (7)
General (53) (124) 71 7% 5
Transmission (640) (218) (422) 15% (62)

 - CAP OPEB Payment (1,902) (1,020) (883) (244)

Deferred Type: CAP Pension Expense

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 (20) 20 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (2) 2 36% 1

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 (22) 22 1

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 12 (12) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 6 (6) 36% (2)

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 18 (18) (2)

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 188 (188) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 80 (80) 35% (28)

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 268 (268) (28)

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 359 (359) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 38 (38) 2% (1)
Transmission 0 174 (174) 36% (62)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 571 (571) (63)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 395 (395) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 102 (102) 2% (2)
Transmission 0 191 (191) 35% (68)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 688 (688) (70)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 396 (396) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 95 (95) 2% (2)
Transmission 0 148 (148) 35% (53)

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 639 (639) (55)

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 262 (262) 0% 0
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Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 140 (140) 2% (3)
Transmission 0 71 (71) 35% (25)

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 474 (474) (28)

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 288 (288) 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 54 (54) 3% (1)
Transmission 0 76 (76) 35% (27)

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 418 (418) (28)

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 150 (150) 35% (52)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 73 (73) 18% (13)
Transmission 0 95 (95) 35% (33)

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 318 (318) (99)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 273 (273) 35% (96)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 54 (54) 18% (10)
Transmission 0 57 (57) 35% (20)

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 384 (384) (125)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 223 (223) 21% (47)
Smart Meters 0 30 (30) 21% (6)
General 0 49 (49) 10% (5)
Transmission 0 40 (40) 21% (8)

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 342 (342) (67)

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 160 (160) 21% (34)
Smart Meters 0 8 (8) 21% (2)
General 0 85 (85) 11% (9)
Transmission 0 14 (14) 21% (3)

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 267 (267) (47)

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 179 (179) 21% (38)
Smart Meters 0 7 (7) 21% (2)
General 0 26 (26) 10% (3)
Transmission 0 55 (55) 21% (11)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 268 (268) (53)

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 172 (172) 21% (36)
Smart Meters 0 5 (5) 21% (1)
General 0 32 (32) 11% (3)
Transmission 0 38 (38) 21% (8)

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 246 (246) (48)

Vintage 2022
Distribution 5,241 68 5,173 21% 1,086
Smart Meters 188 2 185 21% 39
General 239 13 226 11% 24
Transmission 2,873 36 2,837 21% 596

Subtotal-2022 Vintage 8,541 120 8,421 1,745

Subtotals - CAP Pension Expense
Distribution 5,241 3,105 2,136 37% 784
Smart Meters 188 53 135 21% 28
General 239 762 (523) 5% (28)
Transmission 2,873 1,079 1,795 14% 247

  AP Pension Expense 8,541 4,999 3,542 1,031

Deferred Type: CAP Pension Payment
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Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 (247) 247 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (26) 26 36% 9

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 (272) 272 9

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 (286) 286 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (159) 159 36% 57

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 (445) 445 57

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 (894) 894 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (382) 382 35% 135

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 (1,275) 1,275 135

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 (273) 273 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (29) 29 2% 1
Transmission 0 (132) 132 36% 47

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 (434) 434 48

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 (635) 635 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (165) 165 2% 3
Transmission 0 (306) 306 35% 109

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 (1,106) 1,106 112

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 (340) 340 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (82) 82 2% 2
Transmission 0 (127) 127 35% 45

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 (549) 549 47

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 (23) 23 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (13) 13 2% 0
Transmission 0 (6) 6 35% 2

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 (42) 42 3

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 0 0 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 0 0 0

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 (355) 355 35% 124
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (174) 174 18% 31
Transmission 0 (224) 224 35% 79

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 (753) 753 234

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 (1,604) 1,604 35% 561
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (318) 318 18% 56
Transmission 0 (334) 334 35% 118
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Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 (2,256) 2,256 736
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Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 (159) 159 21% 33
Smart Meters 0 (21) 21 21% 5
General 0 (35) 35 10% 4
Transmission 0 (28) 28 21% 6

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 (244) 244 48

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 (103) 103 21% 22
Smart Meters 0 (5) 5 21% 1
General 0 (55) 55 11% 6
Transmission 0 (9) 9 21% 2

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 (173) 173 30

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 (98) 98 21% 20
Smart Meters 0 (4) 4 21% 1
General 0 (14) 14 10% 1
Transmission 0 (30) 30 21% 6

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 (146) 146 29

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 (101) 101 21% 21
Smart Meters 0 (3) 3 21% 1
General 0 (19) 19 10% 2
Transmission 0 (22) 22 21% 5

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 (145) 145 29

Vintage 2022
Distribution (3,087) (40) (3,046) 21% (640)
Smart Meters (111) (1) (109) 21% (23)
General (141) (8) (133) 10% (14)
Transmission (1,692) (21) (1,671) 21% (351)

Subtotal-2022 Vintage (5,030) (71) (4,960) (1,028)

Subtotals - CAP Pension Payment
Distribution (3,087) (5,159) 2,072 7% 143
Smart Meters (111) (35) (76) 21% (16)
General (141) (910) 769 12% 92
Transmission (1,692) (1,807) 115 234% 270

  AP Pension Payment (5,030) (7,911) 2,881 488
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Deferred Type: Capitalized Interest

Vintage 1997
Distribution 0 (6) 6 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (1) 1 36% 0

Subtotal-1997 Vintage 0 (8) 8 0

Vintage 1998
Distribution 0 (7) 7 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1998 Vintage 0 (7) 7 0

Vintage 1999
Distribution 0 (17) 17 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (2) 2 36% 1

Subtotal-1999 Vintage 0 (19) 19 1

Vintage 2000
Distribution 0 (20) 20 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (7) 7 36% 2

Subtotal-2000 Vintage 0 (27) 27 2

Vintage 2001
Distribution 0 (22) 22 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (0) 0 36% 0

Subtotal-2001 Vintage 0 (22) 22 0

Vintage 2002
Distribution 0 (23) 23 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (1) 1 36% 1

Subtotal-2002 Vintage 0 (24) 24 1

Vintage 2003
Distribution 0 (23) 23 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (4) 4 36% 1

Subtotal-2003 Vintage 0 (26) 26 1
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Vintage 2004
Distribution 0 (25) 25 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (1) 1 36% 0

Subtotal-2004 Vintage 0 (26) 26 0

Vintage 2005
Distribution 0 (50) 50 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 (7) 7 36% 2

Subtotal-2005 Vintage 0 (57) 57 2

Vintage 2006
Distribution 0 (32) 32 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (28) 28 2% 1
Transmission 0 (15) 15 36% 5

Subtotal-2006 Vintage 0 (75) 75 6

Vintage 2007
Distribution 0 (19) 19 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (0) 0 2% 0
Transmission 0 (11) 11 36% 4

Subtotal-2007 Vintage 0 (30) 30 4

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 (38) 38 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 1 (1) 2% (0)
Transmission 0 (9) 9 35% 3

Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 (47) 47 3

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 (85) 85 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (1) 1 2% 0
Transmission 0 (15) 15 35% 5

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 (100) 100 5

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 (76) 76 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (3) 3 2% 0
Transmission 0 (3) 3 36% 1

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 (83) 83 1

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 (49) 49 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (6) 6 2% 0
Transmission 0 (46) 46 36% 16

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 (101) 101 16

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 (83) 83 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (20) 20 2% 0
Transmission 0 (86) 86 35% 31

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 (188) 188 31

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 (69) 69 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (23) 23 2% 0
Transmission 0 (23) 23 35% 8

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 (115) 115 9
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Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 (42) 42 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (31) 31 2% 1
Transmission 0 (32) 32 35% 11

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 (105) 105 12

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 (77) 77 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (4) 4 3% 0
Transmission 0 (11) 11 35% 4

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 (92) 92 4

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 (43) 43 35% 15
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 (4) 4 18% 1
Transmission 0 (16) 16 35% 6

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 (62) 62 21

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 (51) 51 35% 18
Smart Meters 0 (17) 17 35% 6
General 0 (143) 143 18% 25
Transmission 0 (12) 12 35% 4

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 (223) 223 53

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 (30) 30 21% 6
Smart Meters 0 (1) 1 21% 0
General 0 (511) 511 10% 54
Transmission 0 (23) 23 21% 5

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 (565) 565 65

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 (34) 34 21% 7
Smart Meters 0 1 (1) 21% (0)
General 0 (788) 788 11% 83
Transmission 0 (11) 11 21% 2

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 (833) 833 92

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 (44) 44 21% 9
Smart Meters 0 (3) 3 21% 1
General 0 (143) 143 11% 15
Transmission 0 (22) 22 21% 5

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 (213) 213 30

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 (57) 57 21% 12
Smart Meters 0 (1) 1 21% 0
General 0 (402) 402 11% 42
Transmission 0 (16) 16 21% 3

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 (477) 477 58

Vintage 2022
Distribution (1,639) (21) (1,618) 21% (340)
Smart Meters (57) (1) (56) 21% (12)
General (1,629) (191) (1,439) 10% (151)
Transmission (1,057) (13) (1,044) 21% (219)

Subtotal-2022 Vintage (4,383) (226) (4,157) (722)

Subtotals - Capitalized Interest
Distribution (1,639) (1,042) (597) 46% (272)
Smart Meters (57) (22) (35) 14% (5)
General (1,629) (2,299) 670 11% 71
Transmission (1,057) (388) (669) 14% (97)
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 - Capitalized Interest (4,383) (3,752) (631) (303)

Deferred Type:  Repair Disallowed Loss 481a

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 (282) 282 35% 99
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
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Transmission 0 (22) 22 35% 8
   Disallowed Loss 481a 0 (304) 304 107

Deferred Type:  South Georgia

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 0 0 0% 0
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 12
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 1,098

total - South Georgia 0 0 0 1,110

Deferred Type:  Tax UoP 481a

Vintage 1991
Distribution 0 223 (223) 35% (78)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 51 (51) 36% (18)

Subtotal-1991 Vintage 0 274 (274) (96)

Vintage 1992
Distribution 0 244 (244) 35% (86)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 27 (27) 36% (10)

Subtotal-1992 Vintage 0 271 (271) (95)

Vintage 1993
Distribution 0 154 (154) 35% (54)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 19 (19) 36% (7)

Subtotal-1993 Vintage 0 174 (174) (61)

Vintage 1994
Distribution 0 271 (271) 35% (95)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1994 Vintage 0 271 (271) (95)

Vintage 1995
Distribution 0 165 (165) 35% (58)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 11 (11) 36% (4)

Subtotal-1995 Vintage 0 176 (176) (62)

Vintage 1996
Distribution 0 178 (178) 35% (62)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 12 (12) 36% (4)

Subtotal-1996 Vintage 0 189 (189) (66)

Vintage 1997
Distribution 0 202 (202) 35% (71)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1997 Vintage 0 202 (202) (71)

Vintage 1998
Distribution 0 123 (123) 35% (43)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-1998 Vintage 0 123 (123) (43)
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Vintage 1999
Distribution 0 458 (458) 35% (160)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 28 (28) 36% (10)

Subtotal-1999 Vintage 0 486 (486) (170)

Vintage 2000
Distribution 0 452 (452) 35% (158)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 32 (32) 36% (12)

Subtotal-2000 Vintage 0 484 (484) (170)

Vintage 2001
Distribution 0 280 (280) 35% (98)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 0 0 0% 0

Subtotal-2001 Vintage 0 280 (280) (98)

Vintage 2002
Distribution 0 268 (268) 35% (94)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 9 (9) 35% (3)

Subtotal-2002 Vintage 0 277 (277) (97)

Vintage 2003
Distribution 0 335 (335) 35% (117)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 49 (49) 36% (17)

Subtotal-2003 Vintage 0 384 (384) (135)

Vintage 2004
Distribution 0 371 (371) 35% (130)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 22 (22) 35% (8)

Subtotal-2004 Vintage 0 393 (393) (138)

Vintage 2005
Distribution 0 887 (887) 35% (310)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 78 (78) 35% (28)

Subtotal-2005 Vintage 0 965 (965) (338)

Vintage 2006
Distribution 0 634 (634) 35% (222)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 101 (101) 36% (36)

Subtotal-2006 Vintage 0 735 (735) (258)

Vintage 2007
Distribution 0 428 (428) 35% (150)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 22 (22) 36% (8)

Subtotal-2007 Vintage 0 450 (450) (158)

Vintage 2008
Distribution 0 409 (409) 35% (143)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 100 (100) 36% (36)
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Subtotal-2008 Vintage 0 510 (510) (179)

Vintage 2009
Distribution 0 605 (605) 35% (212)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 12 (12) 36% (4)

Subtotal-2009 Vintage 0 617 (617) (216)

Vintage 2010
Distribution 0 821 (821) 35% (287)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 60 (60) 35% (21)

Subtotal-2010 Vintage 0 881 (881) (309)

Subtotals - Tax UoP 481a
Distribution 0 7,507 (7,507) 35% (2,627)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 633 (633) 36% (225)

btotal - Tax UoP 481a 0 8,140 (8,140) (2,852)

Deferred Type:  Tax UoP Repair

Vintage 2011
Distribution 0 1,034 (1,034) 35% (362)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 36 (36) 36% (13)

Subtotal-2011 Vintage 0 1,070 (1,070) (375)

Vintage 2012
Distribution 0 880 (880) 35% (308)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 186 (186) 35% (66)

Subtotal-2012 Vintage 0 1,066 (1,066) (374)

Vintage 2013
Distribution 0 1,572 (1,572) 35% (550)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 87 (87) 35% (31)

Subtotal-2013 Vintage 0 1,659 (1,659) (581)

Vintage 2014
Distribution 0 2,181 (2,181) 35% (763)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 56 (56) 35% (20)

Subtotal-2014 Vintage 0 2,237 (2,237) (783)

Vintage 2015
Distribution 0 1,239 (1,239) 35% (434)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 101 (101) 18% (18)
Transmission 0 2 (2) 35% (1)

Subtotal-2015 Vintage 0 1,342 (1,342) (452)

Vintage 2016
Distribution 0 1,461 (1,461) 35% (511)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 129 (129) 35% (46)

Subtotal-2016 Vintage 0 1,591 (1,591) (557)

Vintage 2017
Distribution 0 1,546 (1,546) 35% (541)
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Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 7 (7) 35% (3)

Subtotal-2017 Vintage 0 1,553 (1,553) (544)

Vintage 2018
Distribution 0 2,192 (2,192) 21% (460)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 12 (12) 21% (3)

Subtotal-2018 Vintage 0 2,204 (2,204) (463)

Vintage 2019
Distribution 0 2,031 (2,031) 21% (427)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 7 (7) 21% (1)

Subtotal-2019 Vintage 0 2,038 (2,038) (428)

Vintage 2020
Distribution 0 1,930 (1,930) 21% (405)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 28 (28) 21% (6)

Subtotal-2020 Vintage 0 1,958 (1,958) (411)

Vintage 2021
Distribution 0 1,643 (1,643) 21% (345)
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 0 27 (27) 21% (6)

Subtotal-2021 Vintage 0 1,670 (1,670) (351)

Vintage 2022
Distribution 48,295 630 47,665 21% 10,010
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 0 0 0% 0
Transmission 1,840 23 1,817 21% 382

Subtotal-2022 Vintage 50,135 653 49,482 10,391

Subtotals - Tax UoP Repair
Distribution 48,295 18,339 29,956 16% 4,903
Smart Meters 0 0 0 0% 0
General 0 101 (101) 18% (18)
Transmission 1,840 601 1,239 15% 187

otal - Tax UoP Repair 50,135 19,040 31,095 5,073

TOTALS
Distribution 113,194 78,847 34,347 2,724
Smart Meters 8,753 21,760 (13,007) (5,081)
General 99,276 133,031 (33,755) (4,932)
Transmission 40,078 27,107 12,970 2,002
TOTALS 261,301 260,745 555 (5,288)

TOTALS (with allocated General)
Distribution 203,339 209,673 (6,334) (6,401)
Transmission 57,962 51,072 6,890 1,113
TOTALS 261,301 260,745 555 (5,288)
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Sponsor:  Matthew Simpson 
 
Q.25. Submit a schedule showing a breakdown of accumulated and unamortized investment tax 

credits, by vintage year and percentage rate, together with calculations supporting the 
amortized amount claimed as a reduction to pro forma income taxes. Provide details of 
methods used to write-off the unamortized balances.  

 
A.25. Duquesne Light Company has no accumulated and unamortized investment tax credits in 

the test year.  As such, there will be no investment tax credit amortization reflected on 
Schedule D-18 in DLC Exhibits 2 (Fully Projected Future Test Year), Exhibit 3 (Future 
Test Year) and Exhibit 4 (Historic Test Year).  
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Sponsor:  Jaime Bachota 
 
 
D.26. Explain in detail by statement or exhibit the appropriateness of claiming any 

additional items, not otherwise specifically explained and supported in the 
statement of operating income. 

 
A.26. An explanation of Duquesne Light Company’s claim for any additional operating 

income items is set forth in Section D of DLC Exhibit 2 (Fully Projected Future 
Test Year). 
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Sponsor:  Howard Gorman 
 
 
Q.27. If the utility’s operations include non-jurisdictional activities, provide a schedule which 

demonstrates the manner in which rate base and operating income date have been 
adjusted to develop the jurisdictional test year claim. 

 
A.27. Total system measures of value and components of operating income have been allocated 

between the Total Company and Pennsylvania PUC jurisdictions and the proposed 
revenue increase has been determined on a Pennsylvania PUC jurisdictional basis only.  
Please refer to Exhibit 5, Statement No. 15 – direct testimony of Howard Gorman and 
DLC Exhibit 6. 
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  Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota 
 
 
 
Q.1.   Supply a copy of any budget utilized as a basis for any test year claim, and explain the 

utility’s budgeting process. 
 

A.1.   Attachment DFR-II-E-1 is a summary of the operating budget utilized as the basis for the 
Duquesne Light Company’s future test year claim.  An explanation of the Company’s 
budgeting process is contained in the Direct Testimony of Jaime A. Bachota. 
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

Total
12 Mos. 

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 12/31/2021
UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
Operating Revenues (400) 230,447,275$        228,498,991$     278,947,920$     237,776,693$     975,670,880$       

Operating Expenses 
Operation Expenses (401) 101,840,087          94,270,359         115,497,569       92,698,515         404,306,530         
Maintenance Expenses (402) 12,093,528            11,194,621         13,715,356         11,007,965         48,011,470           
Depreciation Expense (403) 50,348,046            50,905,500         51,780,423         52,821,031         205,855,000         
Amort. & Depl. Of Utility Plant (404-405) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Regulatory Debits (Credits), net (407.3,407.4) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408) 15,131,591            14,406,191         17,568,881         14,744,337         61,851,000           
Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) 7,249,837              7,467,507           11,554,742         8,251,322           34,523,408           
Income Taxes - Other (409.1) 2,632,693              2,711,737           4,195,968           2,996,370           12,536,768           
Provision for Deferred Income Taxes, net  (410.1,411.1) (498,215)                (513,173)            (794,052)            (567,038)            (2,372,478)            
Investment Tax Credit, net (411.7) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
     Total Utility Operating Expenses 188,797,567          180,442,741       213,518,888       181,952,502       764,711,698         
     Net Utility Operating Income 41,649,708            48,056,250         65,429,033         55,824,191         210,959,182         

OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
Other Income
Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Interest and Dividend Income (419) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1) 867,548                 1,261,799           1,661,856           1,832,969           5,624,172             
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
     Total Other Income 867,548                 1,261,799           1,661,856           1,832,969           5,624,172             

Other Income Deductions
Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Donations (426.1) 847,074                 1,133,274           757,274              1,094,739           3,832,360             
Penalties (426.3) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Exp. for Certain Civic, Political, & Related Activities (426.4) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Other Deductions (426.5) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
     Total Other Income Deductions 847,074                 1,133,274           757,274              1,094,739           3,832,360             

Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions
Income Taxes - Federal (409.2) (21,274)                  (21,912)              (33,906)              (24,212)              (101,304)               
Income Taxes - Other (409.2) (8,470)                    (8,724)                (13,500)              (9,640)                (40,334)                 
Provision for Def. Inc. Taxes (410.2) 237,113                 244,232              377,909              269,868              1,129,122             
(Less) Provision for Def. Inc. Taxes (411.2) (98,663)                  (101,625)            (157,249)            (112,292)            (469,830)               
     Total Taxes on Other Inc. and Ded. 108,706                 111,970              173,255              123,723              517,655                

Net Other Income and Deductions (88,232)                  16,555                731,327              614,508              1,274,158             

Interest Charges
Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 14,496,750            14,496,750         14,496,750         14,496,750         57,987,000           
Amortization of Debt Disc. and Expense (428) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Amortization of Loss on Reaquired Debt (428.1) 764,866                 435,726              555,723              642,440              2,398,755             
Amortization of Premium on Debt - Credit (429) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt - Credit (429.1) -                             -                         -                         -                         -                            
Interest on Debt to Assoc. Companies (430) 10,521                   37,388                93,343                281,362              422,614                
Other Interest Expense (431) 204,041                 265,020              230,118              193,541              892,719                
Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432) (422,333)                (422,333)            (422,333)            (422,333)            (1,689,332)            
     Net Interest Charges 15,053,845            14,812,551         14,953,600         15,191,760         60,011,756           

Net Income 26,507,631$          33,260,254$       51,206,759$       41,246,939$       152,221,584$       

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENT OF INCOME

Operating Budget
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Sponsor: Jaime A. Bachota

Total
12 Mos. 

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 12/31/2022
UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
Operating Revenues (400) 236,013,810$          234,018,465$     285,686,006$     243,520,273$     999,238,555$      

Operating Expenses 
Operation Expenses (401) 107,554,438            99,559,965         121,978,256       97,899,924         426,992,584        
Maintenance Expenses (402) 11,683,944              10,815,482         13,250,844         10,635,147         46,385,416          
Depreciation Expense (403) 52,681,096              53,264,381         54,179,847         55,268,676         215,394,000        
Amort. & Depl. Of Utility Plant (404-405) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Regulatory Debits (Credits), net (407.3,407.4) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408) 16,109,538              15,190,885         18,103,153         15,185,425         64,589,000          
Income Taxes - Federal (409.1) 7,227,561                7,444,561           11,519,237         8,225,968           34,417,327          
Income Taxes - Other (409.1) 2,624,603                2,703,404           4,183,075           2,987,163           12,498,246          
Provision for Deferred Income Taxes, net  (410.1,411.1) (496,684)                  (511,597)            (791,612)            (565,296)            (2,365,188)           
Investment Tax Credit, net (411.7) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
     Total Utility Operating Expenses 197,384,496            188,467,082       222,422,800       189,637,006       797,911,384        
     Net Utility Operating Income 38,629,314              45,551,384         63,263,206         53,883,267         201,327,171        

OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
Other Income
Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Interest and Dividend Income (419) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1) 1,064,962                1,548,926           2,040,019           2,250,070           6,903,977            
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
     Total Other Income 1,064,962                1,548,926           2,040,019           2,250,070           6,903,977            

Other Income Deductions
Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Donations (426.1) 833,218                   1,165,668           761,418              1,158,482           3,918,786            
Penalties (426.3) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Exp. for Certain Civic, Political, & Related Activities (426.4) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Other Deductions (426.5) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
     Total Other Income Deductions 833,218                   1,165,668           761,418              1,158,482           3,918,786            

Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions
Income Taxes - Federal (409.2) (35,442)                    (36,506)              (56,488)              (40,338)              (168,774)              
Income Taxes - Other (409.2) (14,111)                    (14,535)              (22,490)              (16,061)              (67,197)                
Provision for Def. Inc. Taxes (410.2) 395,035                   406,895              629,604              449,604              1,881,138            
(Less) Provision for Def. Inc. Taxes (411.2) (164,375)                  (169,310)            (261,979)            (187,081)            (782,744)              
     Total Taxes on Other Inc. and Ded. 181,107                   186,544              288,646              206,124              862,422               

Net Other Income and Deductions 50,638                     196,714              989,954              885,463              2,122,769            

Interest Charges
Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 14,646,978              15,714,174         15,714,174         15,714,174         61,789,500          
Amortization of Debt Disc. and Expense (428) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Amortization of Loss on Reaquired Debt (428.1) 777,669                   443,020              565,025              653,194              2,438,909            
Amortization of Premium on Debt - Credit (429) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt - Credit (429.1) -                               -                         -                         -                         -                           
Interest on Debt to Assoc. Companies (430) 284,290                   289,073              293,356              261,341              1,128,059            
Other Interest Expense (431) 205,304                   269,139              233,021              196,038              903,502               
Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432) (422,333)                  (422,333)            (422,333)            (422,333)            (1,689,332)           
     Net Interest Charges 15,491,908              16,293,074         16,383,243         16,402,413         64,570,638          

Net Income 23,188,044$            29,455,025$       47,869,917$       38,366,316$       138,879,301$      

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
STATEMENT OF INCOME

Operating Budget
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Jaime Bachota 
 
 
 
 
Q.2.   Supply summaries of the utility’s projected operating and capital budgets for the 2 

calendar years following the end of the test year. 
 
A.2.   Attachment DFR II-E-2a provides the Company’s projected operating budget for 

2021 and 2022.  Attachment DFR II-E-2b provides the Company’s capital budget 
for 2021 and 2022. 
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2021 2022

Operating Revenue 975,671$       999,239$       

Operating expenses:
Fuel and Purchased Power 206,041         215,490         
Other Operating 246,277         257,888         
Taxes Other than Income 61,851           64,589           
Depreciation and Amortization 205,855         215,394         
Income Tax Expense 44,688           44,550           
         Total Operating Expenses 764,712         797,911         
Operating income 210,959$       201,327$       

OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
Other Income/(Expense) 1,274             2,123             

Interest Expense 60,012           64,571           

Net Income 152,222$       138,879$       

-                       -                       

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY

Projected Operating Budget (a)
For the Years Ended December 31,

(Thousands of Dollars)
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DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY

Projected Capital Budget
For the Years Ended December 31,

($ Thousands)

Budget Category 2021 2022

Restoration of Service 38,467$                    38,658$                    
Customer Commitment 28,399                      28,545                      
Programmatic Spend 86,116                      82,244                      
Utility Support (Facilities, Vehicles, Meters) 28,444                      21,781                      
Information Technology 42,597                      38,304                      
Advanced Distribution Management System (ADMS) 8,882                        4,167                        
LTIIP Specific Projects 25,703                      40,487                      
Transmission Resiliency and Growth Capital 57,122                      60,739                      
Additional Resiliency and Growth Capital 98,999                      68,208                      
Total Less AFUDC 414,729                    383,133                    
AFUDC 9,244                        11,344                      
Total with AFUDC 423,972$                  394,477$                  
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